




that are relevant to our audit of financial 

statements under the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

these requirements and the Code of Ethics.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter:

4. We draw our attention to:

 

a) Note No. 11(a) in respect of the 

amount advanced to MAMC consortium 

for Rs.6053.89 lakhs, realization 

/settlement of which depends on 

approval from Ministry of Defence and 

viable business plan.

b) Note No.14 in respect of Trade 

receivable from MOD Rs. 4,929..12 

lakhs towards exchange rate difference 

and  e s ca l a t i on  f o r  impo r t  o f 

components in respect of a long term 

contract for Design, Development and 

Supply, entered into with MOD in 2001.  

The company has  received the 

requisite amendment  to  the  contract  

in this regard from  MOD towards 

acceptance of  BEML's claim on account 

of exchange rate variation in Euro and 

the realization of these receivables 

depends on the final determination of 

the amount payable by MOD

c) Refer Note 18 (ii) with respect to 

Claims outstanding from railway board 

an Inter- Ministerial Committee has 

been formed by MOD to resolve the 

issues and the company does not 

expect  mater ia l  impact  on i ts 

realization.

d) Note No. 39(G) regarding pending 

confirmation, reconciliation, review/ 

adjustment of balances in respect of 

Report on the Standalone Financial 

Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying 

standalone financial statements of BEML 

LIMITED (“the company”), which comprise 

the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 

Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash 

Flows for the year then ended, and notes to 

the financial statements, including a 

summary of significant accounting policies 

and other  exp lanatory  in format ion 

(hereinafter referred to as “the standalone 

financial statements”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 

statements give the information required by 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair 

view in conformity with the India Accounting 

Standards prescribed under section 133 read 

with the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, (“Ind 

AS”) and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of 

affairs of the company as at March 31, 2020 

and its PROFIT, change in equity and its cash 

flows for the year ended on that date.  

Basis for Opinion:

  

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Standards on Auditing [SAs] specified 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 

2013.  Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of 

financial statements section of our report.  

We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India together with the ethical requirements 
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5. Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in 

our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the financial 

statements of the current period.  These 

matters were addressed in the context of our 

audit of the standalone financial statements 

as a whole, and in forming our opinion 

thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

opinion on these matters. We have 

determined the matters described below to be 

the key audit matters to be communicated in 

our report:

advances, balances with government 

departments, trade payable, trade 

receivable, other loans and advances 

and deposits.

e) Note No. 39(P) with respect to impact 

of COVID 19 and its consequential 

impact.   

 Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the 

above matters.

  

Key Audit Matters:

Auditor's ResponseKey Audit MattersSl. No.

A c c u r a c y  o f  r e c o g n i t i o n , 

measurement, presentation and 

disclosures of revenues and other 

related balances in view of adoption of 

Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts 

with Customers” (new revenue 

accounting standard):

The application of the new revenue 

accounting standard involves certain key 

judgements relating to identification of 

d is t inc t  per formance ob l igat ions , 

determination of transaction price of the 

identified performance obligations, the 

appropriateness of the basis used to 

measure revenue recognised over a period. 

Additionally, new revenue accounting 

standard contains disclosures which 

involves collation of information in respect 

of disaggregated revenue and periods over 

which the remaining performance 

obligations will be satisfied subsequent to 

the balance sheet date.

Refer Note 30 to the Standalone Financial 

Statements

Principal Audit Procedures

We assessed the Company's process to identify the 

impact of adoption of the new revenue accounting 

standard. Our audit approach consisted testing of 

the design and operating effectiveness of the 

internal controls and substantive testing as follows:

o Evaluated the design of internal controls 

relating to implementation of the new 

revenue accounting standard.

  

o Selected a sample of continuing and new 

contracts, and tested the operating 

effectiveness of the internal control, relating 

to identification of the distinct performance 

obligations and determination of transaction 

price.  We carried out a combination of 

p r o cedu re s  i nvo l v i ng  enqu i r y  and 

observation, reperformance and inspection of 

evidence in respect of operation of these 

controls.

  

o Selected a sample of continuing and new 

contracts and performed the following 

procedures:

Ÿ Read, analysed and identified the 

distinct performance obligations in 

these contracts.

  

Ÿ Compared  these  pe r f o rmance 

obligations with that identified and 

recorded by the Company.

 

Ÿ Considered the terms of the contracts 

to determine the transaction price 

including any variable consideration to 

verify the transaction price used to 

a
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Auditor's ResponseKey Audit MattersSl. No.

Recoverability and assessment of 

Trade Receivables, advances, balances 

with government departments

The Company has net trade receivable 

(Note No.14) of Rs. 1,51,037.35 lakhs after 

providing for impairment of Rs. 22,509.24 

lakhs and net Advances & balances with 

Government Departments (Note No. 18) of 

Rs. 23,708.80 lakhs after providing for 

impairment of Rs. 9,718.55 lakhs

Trade receivables, advances, balances with 

government departments of the company 

comprise mainly receivables in relation to 

the manufacturing and sale of (i) Earth 

Moving equipment (ii) Rail & Metro Products 

(iii) Defence products (iv)  spares and 

services (v) Advance to Vendors and (vi) 

Duties and taxes etc. 

compute revenue and to test the basis 

o f  es t imat ion  o f  the  var iab le 

consideration.

  

Ÿ In respect of samples relating to metro 

c o n t r a c t s ,  p r o g r e s s  t o w a r d s 

satisfaction of performance obligation 

used to compute recorded revenue was 

verified with actual cost incurred up to 

that stage with estimation. We also 

tested the access and change 

management controls relating to these 

systems.

  

Ÿ Sample of revenues disaggregated by 

type and service offerings was tested 

with the performance obligations 

specified in the underlying contracts.

Ÿ Performed analytical procedures for 

reasonableness of revenues disclosed 

by type and service offerings.

Ÿ We  rev i ewed  the  co l l a t i on  o f 

information from the budgeted 

information of the management used 

to prepare the disclosure relating to the 

periods over which the remaining 

performance obligations will be 

satisfied subsequent to the balance 

sheet date.

Principal Audit Procedures

We have performed the following procedures in 

relation to the recoverability of trade receivables:

o Tested the accuracy of aging of trade 

receivables, advances, balances with 

government departments at year end on a 

sample basis.

o Obtained a list of outstanding receivables and 

identified any debtors wherever there is delay 

in payment over the terms agreed.

 

o Assessed the recoverability of the unsettled 

receivables on a sample basis through our 

evaluation of management's assessment with 

reference to the credit profile of the 

customers, historical payment pattern of 

customers and latest correspondence with 

b
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Auditor's ResponseKey Audit MattersSl. No.

customers and to consider if any additional 

provision should be made; and

 

o Tested subsequent settlement of trade 

receivables after the balance sheet date on a 

sample basis, if any.

We found the key judgements and assumptions 

used by management in the recoverability 

assessment of trade receivables to be supportable 

based on the available evidence.

We have drawn attention in Emphasis of Matters on 

trade receivables, advances and balances with 

government departments which, in our judgement, 

are fundamental to the users' understanding of the 

financial statements.

Principal Audit Procedures

In response to the risk of completeness of the 

disclosures and the completeness of the provisions 

in the financial statements, we discussed the cases 

with management, and reviewed correspondence 

and other documents exchanged between company 

and advocates/legal practitioners parties involved 

in the disputes. We verified the demands with 

extracts of concerned web-portals produced on, 

sample basis.

We tested provisions recorded in the accounting 

records and reviewed the disclosures for 

completeness based on our procedures detailed 

above.

These balances are recognised at their 

anticipated realisable value, which is the 

original invoiced amount/payments less 

provision (estimated for) for non-realisable 

value. 

Valuation of trade receivables, advances, 

a n d  b a l a n c e s  w i t h  g o v e r n m e n t 

departments is a key audit matter in the 

audit due to the size of its holding and the 

high level of management judgement used 

in determining the impairment provision.

Disputes and potential litigations:

Refer to Note 39.D.I.a.i. in the standalone 

financial statements

The Company is involved in legal 

proceedings on disputed tax demands. The 

company's management has assessed that 

the probability of success of the demand is 

Remote and accordingly has not provided 

for the disputed demands.

Management judgement is involved in 

assessing the accounting for demands, and 

in particular in considering the probability 

of a demand being successful and we have 

accordingly designated this as a focus area 

of the audit. The risk related to the claims is 

mainly associated with the completeness of 

the disclosure, and the completeness of the 

provisions in the financial statements.

C
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accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

a n d  d e s i g n ,  i m p l e m e n t a t i o n  a n d 

maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the 

standalone financial statements that give a 

true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

8. In preparing the standalone financial 

statements the Board of Directors is 

responsible for assessing the Company's 

ability to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to 

going concern and using the going concern 

basis of accounting unless the Board of 

Directors either intends to liquidate the 

Company or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to do so.  

9. The Board of Directors are responsible for 

overseeing the Company's financial reporting 

process.  

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Standalone Financial Statements:

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the standalone 

financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 

includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance 

is a high level assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 

and are considered material if, individually or 

in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions 

of users taken on the basis of these 

standalone financial statements.

 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we 

exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We also:

Ÿ Identify and assess the risks of material 

Information Other than the Standalone 

Financial Statements and Auditor's Report 

Thereon

6. The Company's Board of Directors is 

responsible for the preparation of the other 

information.  The other information 

comprises the information included in the 

Board's Report including Annexures to 

Board's Report, Management Discussion and 

Analysis, Business Responsibility Report, 

Corporate Governance and Shareholder's 

Information, but does not include the 

standalone financial statements and our 

auditor's report thereon.  Our opinion on the 

standalone financial statements does not 

cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon. In connection with our audit of the 

standalone financial statements, our 

responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with 

the  standalone financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained during the course of our 

audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a 

material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that 

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those 

Charged with Governance for the Standalone 

Financial Statements:

7. The Company's Board of Directors is 

responsible for the matters stated in Section 

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 

standalone financial statements that give a 

true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance, changes in equity and 

cash flows of the Company in accordance with 

the accounting principles generally accepted 

in India, including the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

the assets of the Company and for preventing 

and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 

selection and application of appropriate 
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Ÿ Evaluate the overall presentation, 

structure and content of the standalone 

financial statements, including the 

d i s c l o su res ,  and  whe the r  the 

standalone financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions 

and events in a manner that achieves 

fair presentation.

 We communicate with those charged with 

governance regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that 

we identify during our audit.

 We also provide those charged with 

governance with a statement that we have 

complied with relevant ethical requirements 

r e g a r d i n g  i n d e p e n d e n c e ,  a n d  t o 

communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be 

thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards. From 

the matters communicated with those 

charged with governance, we determine 

those matters that were of most significance 

in the audit of the standalone financial 

statements of the current period and are 

therefore the key audit matters. We describe 

these matters in our auditor's report unless 

law or regulation precludes public disclosure 

about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report 

because the adverse consequences of doing 

so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 

the public interest benefits of such 

communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor's 

Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of 

sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 

Annexure-A a statement on the matters 

Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 

to the extent applicable.

miss ta tement  o f  the  financ ia l 

statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit 

procedures responsive to those risks, 

and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may 

involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control.

Ÿ Obtain an understanding of internal 

control relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. 

Under section 143(3)(i) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion 

on whether the company has adequate 

internal financial controls with 

reference to standalone financial 

statements in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls.

Ÿ Evaluate the appropriateness of 

accounting policies used and the 

reasonab leness  o f  account ing 

estimates and related disclosures 

made by management.

Ÿ Conclude on the appropriateness of 

management's use of the going 

concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, 

whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the 

Company's ability to continue as a 

going concern. If we conclude that a 

material uncertainty exists, we are 

required to draw attention in our 

auditor's report to the related 

disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 

are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor's 

report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern.
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financial statements and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls, refer to 

our separate Report in Annexure B.

g) With respect to other matters to be 

included in the Auditor's Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014, in our opinion and to the best of 

our information and according to the 

explanations given to us;

i. The Company has disclosed the 

impact of pending litigations on 

its financial posit ion in its 

standalone financial statements. 

Refer Note 39(D)(I)(a)(ii) of 

standalone financial statements.

 

ii. The Company did not have any 

derivative contracts but have 

provided material foreseeable 

losses of Rs.120.18 Lakhs ( PY Rs. 

1123.57 Lakhs) for onerous 

contracts (Refer Note 37).

iii. There were no amounts which 

required to be transferred by the 

Company  to  the  Inves to r 

Education and Protection Fund.

13. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act, 

which is applicable to the Company, we give our 

separate report in Annexure – C

12. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we 

report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the 

information and explanations which to 

the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our 

audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account 

as required by law have been kept by 

the Company so far as it appears from 

our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of 

Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes 

in Equity and Cash Flow Statement 

dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account.

d) In  our  op in ion,  the a foresa id 

standalone financial statements 

comply with the Ind AS Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 

of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) Being a Government Company 

provisions of section 164(2) of the Act 

relating to disqualification of directors 

are not applicable. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls over 

financial reporting of the Company's 

For V. KRISHNAN & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 001541S

J. SIVAKUMAR - Partner     
 Membership No.: 217774   Place: Bengaluru (camp)

Date : 27.06.2020
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compensation of Rs. 183.57 lakhs 

demanded by KIADB) for which 

title deeds have to be obtained 

from KIADB. 

4) Kerala Industrial Infrastructure 

Deve l opmen t  Co rpo ra t i on 

(KIIDC) has allotted Leased land 

measuring 374.59 acres for a 

lease premium of Rs. 2547.21 

lakhs for 99 years lease period 

w.e.f 01.07.2009. The actual land 

handed over by KIIDC was 

measuring 374.16 acres and 

revised lease premium payable is 

Rs. 2544.29 lakhs only and 

execution of formal amendment 

of lease agreement is pending.

5) As explained to us, the Company 

has taken land measuring 1109 

acres and two workshops on lease 

for a period of 10 years vide Lease 

Agreement dated 5th May 2004, 

w.e.f. 28.04.2004 from M/s. 

Bharat Gold Mines Limited 

(BGML) and a sum of 100 Lakhs 

was paid as non-refundable 

deposit, The Company had 

incurred on the above land a sum 

of Rs. 1452.95 lakhs ( with 

carrying value of  Rs.903.83 

Lakhs) on Buildings included in 

Property, Plant and Equipment  

(Note 3) as at the year end.  Vide 

order dated 09.07.2013, the 

Hon'ble Supreme Court of India 

upheld the decision of the Union 

Government to float a global 

tender of BGML assets with an 

observation about the existence 

of sub-lease of a portion of the 

land to BEML Ltd expired on 

28.04.2014 to be included in the 

tender documents. The Company 

filed an Interlocutory application 

before the Hon'ble Supreme 

Court of India, praying for 

exclusion of land leased to BEML 

from the purview of global tender, 

which was dismissed. Since the 

lease agreement provides for the 

R e f e r r e d  i n  p a r a g r a p h  1 1  o f  t h e 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT of even 

date on the standalone financial statements of 

M/s. BEML LIMITED for the year ended 

31.03.2020

On the basis of such checks as we considered 

appropriate and according to the information and 

explanations given to us during the course of our 

audit, we report that,

i) (a)  The Company has maintained proper 

records showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and 

situation of fixed assets;

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically 

verified by the management in a 

phased manner, designed to cover all 

the items over a period of three years, 

which in our opinion, is reasonable 

having regard to the size of the 

company and nature of its business. 

Pursuant to the program, a portion of 

the fixed asset has been physically 

verified by the management during 

the year and as informed to us, no 

material discrepancies have been 

noticed between the book records and 

physical verification of fixed assets.

(c) The t i t le  deeds of  immovable 

properties are held in the name of the 

company except in the following 

cases.

1) As explained to us, Building 

costing Rs. 33.00 lakhs (carrying 

value Rs.15.34 lakhs) situated at 

Mumbai and Ranchi are pending 

for registration / khatha transfer .

2) As explained to us, Lease Hold 

land costing Rs. 129.41 Lakhs at 

Hyderabad for which registration 

w i l l  b e  c o m p l e t e d  a f t e r 

development of showroom.

3) As explained to us, free hold land 

measuring 560 acres at Mysore 

cost ing  Rs. 307.58 lakhs 

( i n c l u d i n g  a d d i t i o n a l 

ANNEXURE - A
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of the Order are not applicable to the 

Company.

iv) There are no transactions of loans to 

directors, and being a Government Company 

engaged in defence production, provisions of 

Sec 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

in respect of loans, investments, guarantees 

and security are not applicable.

v) The Company has not accepted any deposits 

to which the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or 

any other relevant provisions of the Act and 

the rules framed there under and also the 

directions issued by the Reserve Bank of 

India. 

vi) Maintenance of Cost Records has been 

specified by the Central Government under 

sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in 

respect of the activities carried on by the 

company. We are of the opinion that prima 

facie, the prescribed records have been made 

and maintained.

vii) (a)  The Company has been generally 

regular in depositing undisputed 

statutory dues including Provident 

Fund, Employees State Insurance, 

Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, 

Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value 

added Tax, Cess and any other 

statutory dues with the appropriate 

au thor i t i es .  Accord ing  to  the 

information and explanations given to 

us, no undisputed amounts payable in 

respect of the above were in arrears as 

at March 31, 2020 for a period of more 

than six months from the date they 

became payable.

 (b) The details of dues of income-tax, 

sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, 

duty of excise, value added tax 

outstanding on account of any dispute, 

is furnished below :–

continuation of the lease even 

after the expiring of lease period 

on 28.04.2014 till the final 

decision of the Company / 

Government in this regard, the 

operations of the company on the 

above land is continued.

6) As explained to us, the Company 

has taken action to obtain title 

documents in respect of the 

following immovable properties;

a) Flat at Roshan Complex Madras – 

Rs. 4.04 lakhs

b) Flat at Ashadeep, New Delhi - Rs. 

2.80 lakhs

c) Office building at Nagpur - Rs. 

27.18 lakhs

7) The Company has initiated legal 

action to obtain possession of 

1.88 acres of land out of 5 acres at 

Tatisileai, Arra Village, Ranchi. 

     

ii) The company has conducted the physical 

verification of the inventory excluding 

materials lying with third parties and work in 

progress during the year in accordance with 

programme designed to cover all items over a 

phased manner. According to the information 

and explanation given to us and in our 

opinion the frequency of physical verification 

is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on 

physical verification of the inventory as 

compared to books records which has been 

properly dealt with in the books of account 

were not material.

iii) The Company has not granted any loans, 

secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 

limited liability partnerships or other parties 

covered in the Register maintained under 

section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the 

provisions of paragraph 3 (iii) (a) (b) and (c) 
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Name Of The Statute
Nature Of Disputed 

Tax

Amount       

(Rs. Lakhs)

Period To Which 
The Amount 

Relates

Forum Where The 

Dispute Is Pending

 

Central Excise Act, 1944

Excise Duty incl. 

Interest and Penalty
28,487.19

2007-08 to 

June 2017
CESTAT, Bangalore

 

Excise Duty incl. 

Interest and Penalty
375.09 2013-14 Appellate Authority

National Calamity 

Contingency Duty
1,305.68 2014-15 CESTAT

Total Excise Duty 30,167.95

Service Tax Act, 1994
Service Tax including

penalty
430.25

Feb 2014 to 

March 2015
CESTAT, Bangalore

Service Tax 2,100.50
2009-10 to 

2016-17
Appellate Authority

Total Service Tax 2,530.75

The Customs Act, 1962 Customs Duty 2,226.97
2008-09 to 

2016-17
CESTAT, Chennai

The Karnataka Municipal 

Corporation Act, 1976

Municipality Taxes 

KGF
690.11 2012

City Municipality 

council – KGF

Property Tax 109.11
1995-96 to 

2005-06

City Civil Judge, 

Bangalore

Total ED, Service  

Tax, CD & Property 

tax

35,724.89

Sales Tax Act of Various 

States

Sales Tax /VAT 10.24 2003-04
Maharashtra Sales 

Tax tribunal

Sales Tax /VAT 6,650.29
January 2008 to 

2017-18

Karnataka Sales Tax 

tribunal

Sales Tax /VAT 500.40 2009-10, 2015-16

WB Commercial taxes 

Appellate and 

Revision Board, 

Kolkatta

Sales Tax /VAT 1,875.61
From 2004-05 to 

2016-17

Other appellate 

authorities

Total Sales Tax / 

VAT
9,036.54

Grand  Total 44,761.43

Amount Deposited under 

Protest

Central 

Excise/Customs
208.07

Amount Deposited under 

Protest
Sales Tax VAT 3,115.00

TOTAL 3,323.07
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xiii) All transactions with the related parties are in 

compliance with section 177 and 188 of 

Companies Act, 2013 and the details have 

been disclosed under Note 39C in the 

standalone financial Statements as required 

by the applicable Accounting Standards.

xiv) The company has not made any preferential 

allotment or private placement of shares or 

fully or partly convertible debentures during 

the year and accordingly paragraph 3 (xiv) of 

the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xv) The company has not entered into any non-

cash transactions with directors or persons 

connected with him and accordingly 

paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable 

to the Company.

xvi) The Company is not required to be registered 

under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934 and accordingly paragraph 3 

(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company.

viii) The Company has not defaulted in repayment 

of loans or borrowings due to financial 

institutions, banks, Government and to 

debenture holders.

ix) The company has not raised moneys by way 

of initial public offer or further public offer 

including debt instruments and term Loans 

during the year. 

x) Based upon the audit procedures performed 

and the information and explanations given 

by the management, we report that no fraud 

by the Company or on the company by its 

officers or employees has been noticed or 

reported during the year.

xi) Being a Government company, the provisions 

of sec 197 read with schedule V to the Act, 

relating to the managerial remuneration are 

not applicable. 

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and 

accordingly paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is 

not applicable to the Company.

For V. KRISHNAN & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 001541S

J. SIVAKUMAR - Partner     
 Membership No.: 217774   Place: Bengaluru (camp)

Date : 27.06.2020
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issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India.  Those Standards and the Guidance Note 

require that we comply with ethical requirements, 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting were 

established and maintained and if such controls 

operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 

audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting 

and their operating effectiveness.  Our audit of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting 

included obtaining an understanding of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 

and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the 

assessed risk.  The procedures selected depend on 

the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the 

standalone financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence, we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's 

internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures 

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 

in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of  financial statements in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles, and 

that receipts and expenditures of the company are 

being made only in accordance with authorisations 

Referred in clause (f), paragraph 12 of the 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT of even 

date on the standalone financial statements of 

M/s. BEML LIMITED for the year ended 

31.03.2020

Report on the Internal Financial Controls 

under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 

143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over 

financial reporting of M/s. BEML LIMITED 

(hereinafter referred as “the Company”) as of 

March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the 

standalone financial statements of the company for 

the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal 

Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

(the Guidance Note) issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India [ICAI]. These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation 

and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to company's policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, and the 

timely preparation of reliable financial information, 

as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 

Company's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our 

audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the 

Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed 

to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 

audit of internal financial controls, both applicable 

to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 

ANNEXURE -B
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financial control over financial reporting may 

become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion:

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material 

respects, an adequate internal financial controls 

over financial reporting and such internal financial 

controls over financial reporting were operating 

effectively as at 31st March 2020, based on “the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in 

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 

assets that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 

Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting, including 

the possibility of collusion or improper management 

override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected.  Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

For V. KRISHNAN & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 001541S

J. SIVAKUMAR - Partner     
 Membership No.: 217774   Place: Bengaluru (camp)

Date : 27.06.2020
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II. Whether there is any restructuring of an 

existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of 

debts /loans/interest etc. made by a lender to 

the company due to the company's inability to 

repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact 

may be stated.

 Comment: There are no instances of 

restructuring of an existing loan or cases of 

waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc 

made by a lender to the company due to 

company's inability to repay the loan.

III. Whether funds received/receivable for 

specific schemes from central / state agencies 

were properly accounted for/ utilized as per 

its term and conditions? List the cases of 

deviation.

 Comment:  The Company, during the year of 

audit, has not received/receivable of funds for 

specific schemes from Central/State 

agencies. 

R e f e r r e d  i n  p a r a g r a p h  1 3  o f  t h e 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT of even 

date on the standalone financial statements of 

M/s. BEML LIMITED for the year ended 

31.03.2020

Report as required by section 143 (5) of the 

Act, 2013 relating to the directions issued by 

the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

I. Whether the company has system in place to 

process all the accounting transactions 

through IT system? If yes, the implications of 

processing of accounting transactions outside 

IT system on the integrity of the accounts 

along with the financial implications, if any, 

may be stated.

 Comment: Yes, the company has system in 

place to process al l  the accounting 

transactions through IT system.  We 

observed that no accounting transactions are 

processed outside IT system on the integrity 

of the accounts.

ANNEXURE - C

For V. KRISHNAN & CO.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 001541S

J. SIVAKUMAR - Partner     
 Membership No.: 217774   Place: Bengaluru (camp)

Date : 27.06.2020
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To
Shri Deepak Kumar Hota,
Chairman and Managing Director,
M/s. BEML Limited,
BEML Soudha, S.R.Nagar,
Bangalore-560 027.

Sir,

Sub:  Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
    S e c t i o n  1 4 3 ( 6 ) ( b )  o f  t h e  C o m p a n i e s  A c t ,  2 0 1 3  o n  t h e
         Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of M/s BEML Limited,
         Bengaluru for the year ended  31 March 2020.

       I forward “Nil Comments” Certificates of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 

143(6)(b) read with section 129(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Standalone and Consolidated Financial 

Statements of M/s. BEML Limited, Bengaluru for the year ended 31 March 2020.

19 August 2020
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indicated.

d. Preparation of the financial statements, in 
conformity with Ind AS, requires the 
Management to make estimates and 
assumptions considered in the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities (including 
contingent liabilities) and the reported 
income and expenses during the year. The 
Management believes that the estimates 
used in preparation of the Financial 
Statements are prudent and reasonable. 
Future results could differ due to these 
estimates.

e. Assets and liabilities have been classified as 
current or non-current as per the Group's 
normal operating cycle and other criteria set 
out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 
2013. Based on the nature of products and 
the time between the acquisition of assets for 
processing and their realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents, the Group's operating cycle 
is considered as twelve months for the 
purpose of current / non-current 
classification of assets and liabilities.

f. The Group revises its accounting policies if 
the change is required due to a change in Ind 
AS or if the change will provide more relevant 
and reliable information to the users of the 
financial statements. Changes in accounting 
policies are applied retrospectively. A change 
in an accounting estimate that results in 
changes in the carrying amounts of 
recognised assets or liabilities or to profit or 
loss is applied prospectively in the period(s) 
of change.  Discovery of errors result in 
revisions retrospectively by restating the 
comparative amounts of assets, liabilities 
and equity of the earliest prior period in 
which the error is discovered. The opening 
balances of the earliest period presented are 
also restated.

(i) Subsidiaries are entities controlled by 

the Group. The Group controls an 
entity when it is exposed to, or has 
rights to, variable returns from its 
involvement with the entity and has 
the ability to affect those returns 
through its power over the entity. The 
financial statements of subsidiaries are 
included in the consolidated financial 
statements from the date on which 
control commences until the date on 

g. Basis of Consolidation:

Note no. 1: Corporate Information :

Note no. 2: Consolidated Significant 
accounting policies

2.1.  Basis of preparation and Statement of 
Compliance

The accompanying consolidated financial 
statements comprise of the financial statements of 
BEML Limited (the Company), its subsidiaries viz., 
Vignyan Industries Ltd and MAMC Industries Ltd 
(referred collectively as the 'Group') and the Groups 
interest in associates and Joint ventures for the year 
ended 31 March 2020.The Group manufactures and 
supplies defence ground support equipment such as 
Tatra based high mobility trucks, aircraft towing 
tractors etc. Under Mining and Construction 
business, the Group manufactures and supplies 
equipment like bull dozers, excavators, dumpers, 
shovels, loaders and motor graders to various user 
segments and under Rail and Metro business, 
manufactures and supplies rail coaches, metro cars, 
ACEMUs, OHE cars, steel and aluminium wagons to 
the rail and metro sector. Information on other 
related party and nature of relationships of the 
Group is provided in Note 39C. These financial 
statements were authorised for issue in accordance 
with a resolution of the directors on 27-06-2020.

a. The financial statements of the Group have 
been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules,2015 notified under section 133 of the 
Companies Act,2013 (the 'Act') and other 
relevant provisions of the Act.  

These financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2020 with comparatives of year 
ended 31 March 2019 are prepared in 
accordance with Ind AS.

b. The financial statements have been prepared 
on a historical cost basis, except for the 
following assets and liabilities which have 
been measured at fair value:

 Ÿ Derivative financial instruments, 

Ÿ Certain financial assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value (refer accounting 
policy regarding financial instruments), 

Ÿ Defined benefit and other long-term 
employee benefits obligations.

c. The financial statements are presented in 
Indian Rupee (INR) which is the functional 
and the presentation currency of the Group 
and all values are rounded to the nearest 
lakhs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise 

CONSOLIDATED SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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which control ceases.

(ii) Non-controlling interest (NCI) are 

measured at their proportionate share 
of the acquiree's net identifiable assets 
at the date of acquisition.

Changes in the Group's equity interest 
in a subsidiary that do not result in a 
loss of control are accounted for as 
equity transactions.

(iii) Equity accounted investees: The 

Group's interests in equity accounted 
investees comprise interests in 
associates and joint ventures.

An associate is an entity in which the 
Group has significant influence, but not 
control or joint control, over the 
financial and operating policies. A joint 
venture is an arrangement in which the 
Group has joint control and has rights 
to the net assets of the arrangement, 
rather than rights to its assets and 
obligations for its liabilities.

Interests in associates and joint 
ventures are accounted for using the 
equity method. They are initially 
recognized at cost which includes 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, the consolidated financial 
statements include the Group's share 
of profit or loss and OCI of equity 
accounted investees until the date on 
which significant influence or joint 
control ceases.

(iv) Tr a n s a c t i o n s  e l i m i n a t e d  o n  

consolidation: Intra group balances 
and transactions and any unrealized 
income and expenses arising from 
intra group transactions, are 
eliminated. Unrealized gains arising 
from transactions with equity 
accounted investees are eliminated 
against the investment to the extent of 
the Group's interest in the investee. 
Unrealized losses are eliminated in the 
same way as unrealized gains, but only 
to the extent that there is no evidence 
of impairment.

Sales is exclusive of GST.

Revenue is recognised, on the transfer of 

2.2 Summary of consolidated significant 
accounting policies

A. Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from contracts with customers:

promised goods or services, by way of 
allocating transaction price, being amount of 
c o n s i d e r a t i o n  w h i c h  a n  e n t i t y  
expects/entitles in exchange for transferring 
promised goods or services to a customer, to 
the extent of performance obligation 
satisfied in a contract.

a.  Revenue is recognised overtime where 
the transfer of control of goods or 
services takes place over time by  
measuring the progress towards 
complete sat isfact ion of that 
performance obligation, if one of the 
following  criteria is met:

· the Group's  performance entitles 

the customer to receive and 
c o n s u m e  t h e  b e n e f i t s  
simultaneously as  the company 
performs

· the Group's performance creates or 

enhances an asset that the 
customer controls as the asset is 
created or enhanced

· the Group's performance does not 

create an asset with an alternative 
use to the company and the 
company has an enforceable right 
to payment for performance 
completed to date.

b. Progress made towards satisfying a 
performance obligation is assessed 
based on the ratio of actual costs  
incurred on the contract up to the 
reporting date to the estimated total 
costs expected to complete the  
contract. If the outcome of the 
performance obligation cannot be 
estimated reliably and where it is  
probable that the costs will be 
recovered, revenue is recognised to 
the extent of costs incurred.

c. For measurement of satisfaction of 
performance obligation over time, 
input cost method is adopted. 

a. In respect of cases where the transfer 
of control does not take place over 
time, the Group recognises    the 
revenue at a point in time when it 
satisfies the performance obligations.

b. The performance obligation is satisfied 
when the customer obtains control of 

i. Satisfaction of performance 
obligation over time

ii   Satisfaction of performance  
obligation at a point in time
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the asset. The indicators for transfer of 
control include the following:

· the Group has transferred physical 

possession of the asset

· the customer has legal title to the 

asset

· the customer has accepted the 

asset

· when the Group has a present right t o  

payment for the asset

· the Group has the significant risks 

and rewards of ownership of the 
asset. The transfer of significant 
risks and rewards ownership is 
assessed based on the Inco- terms 
of the contracts. 

c.  Bill and hold Sales

Bill and hold sales is recognised when 
all the following criteria are met:

· the reason for the bill and hold sales is 

substantive 

· the product is identified separately as 

belonging to the customer 

· the product is currently ready for 

physical transfer to the customer 

· the Group does not have the ability to 

use the product or to direct it to 
another customer 

Escalation in prices are recognized as 
revenue as per the escalation formula 
provided in the contract. In the absence of 
such a clause in the contract, any claim for 
the same is recognized on acceptance by 
the customer.

Duty drawback claims on exports are 
accounted on preferring the claims.

Revenue from generation of electricity 
from wind mill is recognized when the 
electricity is supplied to industrial 
electricity distribution license holder as 
per the terms of agreement.

Interest Income is recognized using 
the effective interest rate (EIR) on a 
time proportion basis and as per the 

Escalation:

Duty Drawback:

Revenue from wind energy:

Other Income

(i)Interest income:

terms of the relevant instrument. 

Dividend income is recognized when 
the Group's right to receive the 
payment is established.

Rental income arising from operating 
leases is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the non-cancellable 
lease term unless increases in rentals 
are in line with expected inflation.

The Group accounts for its interests in 
associates and joint ventures in the separate 
financial statements at cost.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially 
recorded by the Group at their respective 
currency exchange rates at the date the 
transaction first qualifies for recognition. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies are translated at the 
functional currency exchange rate at the 
reporting date. Differences arising on 
settlement or translation of monetary items 
are recognized in statement of profit and loss. 
Non-monetary items that are measured in 
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency 
are translated using the exchange rates at the 
dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a 
foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair 
value is determined.

The Group measures certain financial 
instruments, such as derivatives and other 
items in its financial statements at fair value 
at each balance sheet date. All assets and 
liabilities for which fair value is measured or 
disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy.

Classification of an operation as a 
discontinued operation occurs at the earlier of 
disposal or when the operation meets the 
criteria to be classified as held-for-sale. When 
an operation is classified as a discontinued 
operation, the comparative statement of 
profit and loss and other comprehensive 
income is re-presented as if the operation had 
been discontinued from the start of the 
comparative year.

(ii) Dividends:

(iii) Rental income:

B. Investments in associates and joint 
venture

C. Foreign Currencies:

D. Fair value measurement:

E. Discontinued operation:
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prescribed in schedule II of the companies Act 
2013.In respect of the following assets, 
useful lives are different than the useful lives 
indicated in Schedule II of Companies Act 
2013, based on technical assessment and 
management estimates depending on the 
nature and usage of the respective assets.

(a) Special tools up to the unit value of 
₹5,000 are charged off in the year of 

incurrence and Special tools to the unit 
value above ₹5,000 are amortised over 

a period of 3 years.

(b) Jigs and fixtures up to the unit value of 
₹5 Lakhs are charged off in the year of 

incurrence and Jigs and fixtures of unit 
value above ₹5 Lakhs are amortised 

over a period of 3 years.

When parts of an item of property, plant and 
equipment have different useful lives, they 
are treated as separate components and 
depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

The residual values, useful lives and methods 
of depreciation are reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively.

Any gain or loss arising out of derecognizing 
of an asset is included in statement of Profit 
and Loss of the relevant period.

Products given under No Cost No 
Commitment are capitalised appropriately 
under the relevant asset category and 
amortised over the useful life of that asset.  
They are also tested for impairment 
periodically.   

Expenditure incurred on Developmental 
Projects for participating in trials, based on 
Request from customers, are carried forward 
till conclusion of the trials and will be 
amortised over the orders to be received.  In 
case customer order does not forthcoming or 
on discontinuation of project, the balance 
amount will be either capitalised if further 
economic benefit is expected from its use or 
will be charged off. 

I. Investment Property:

Investment properties are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment loss if any. The fair value of the 
Investment property is disclosed in the notes.

J. Intangible Assets:

(I) Intangible assets acquired are stated at 

acquisition cost, less accumulated 
amor t i z a t i on  and  a c cumu l a t ed  

F. Government Grants:

G. Income Taxes:

Current income tax:

Deferred tax:

H. Property, Plant & Equipment:

Government Grants are recognized as follows 
when there is reasonable assurance that the 
grant will be received and all attached terms 
and conditions will be complied with.

(i) Grant towards meeting expenditure is 

recognized as income as and when the 
expenditure for which the grant is 
sanctioned is incurred.

(ii) Grant towards procurement of an asset is 

recognized as income in equal amounts 
over the expected useful life of the related 
asset.

(iii) Grant towards non-monetary assets are 

recognized at fair value and released to 
Statement of profit and loss over the 
expected useful life.

(iv) The subsidized portion of interest rate 

provided by the Government on loans or 
similar financial assistance is recognized 
as grant.

Current tax assets and liabilities are 
measured at the amount to be recovered 
from or paid to the taxation authorities as per 
the applicable tax laws at the reporting date 
in Statement of profit and loss.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability 
method on temporary differences between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes at the reporting date.  Deferred tax 
assets are recognized to the extent it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available 
against which the deductible temporary 
differences can be utilized. 

For the items directly recognized in Equity, 
the current and deferred tax pertaining to 
such item is recognized through Equity.

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at 
cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses if any. Cost 
includes expenditure on acquisition of asset, 
present value of expected cost for the 
decommissioning of an asset, cost of 
replacing part of Plant and Equipment and 
borrowing costs.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line 
basis over estimated useful lives as 



available to the lessee; and

(b) The underlying asset is not highly 
dependent on, or highly interrelated 
with, other assets. 

The initial value of lease liability shall be 
determined at the present value of the lease 
payments due. The interest

At the commencement date, the Group as 
lessee measures the right of use asset at cost. 
The cost of “right of use” asset is determined 
at the present value of outstanding lease 
payments plus any initial direct cost and 
estimated cost, if any, of dismantling and 
removing the underlying asset and presented 
as part of Plant, property and equipment 
schedule in the Balance Sheet.

Lessee would recognize depreciation expense 
on the right of use asset using the straight line 
method from the commencement date to the 
end of lease term or useful life of the asset, 
whichever is earlier.

In case of an operating lease, initial direct 
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging 
the lease are added to the carrying amount of 
the leased asset. In case of finance leases, 
amounts due from lessees are recorded as 
receivables.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost 
and net realizable value. Cost for the purpose 
of the above is accounted as under:

(i) Raw materials, Components, Stores 
& Spare parts: weighted average cost

(ii) Finished goods and Work in Progress: 
Cost of materials, labour and 
production overheads

Scrap is valued at estimated realizable value.

Based on ageing assessment, on a periodic 
basis an allowance is recognized for obsolete, 
non-moving inventory.

The Group assesses at each reporting date for 

 rate implicit in 
the lease or lessee's incremental borrowing 
may be used to arrive at the present value of 
the lease payments due. The lease liability is 
subsequently measured by increasing the 
carrying amount to reflect interest on the 
lease liability and reducing the carrying 
amount to reflect the lease payments made.

Leases will be recognised where the value of 
new individual asset is more than Rs.2 Lakhs.

Group as a lessor:

M. Inventory:

N. Impairment of non-financial assets:

impairment losses if any

(ii) Research costs are expensed as incurred

(iii) Development expenditure is recognized 

as Intangible assets and tested for 
impairment annually during the period of 
development

(iv) Expenditure on development of products 

intended for sale is included in inventory.

(v) Intangible Assets referred above includes 

the cost of materials, direct labour, 
overhead costs, borrowing costs that are 
directly attributable to the respective 
asset for its intended use. 

Intangible assets are amortized over useful 
economic life and assessed for impairment if 
any. Where it is not possible to assess the 
useful economic life of an intangible asset, 
the same is not amortized and reviewed 
annually for impairment if any.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to 
creation of an asset are capitalized as part of 
the cost of the asset. General borrowing costs 
are capitalized by apportioning the same to 
qualifying assets.

Contracts with third party, which give the 
Group the right of use in respect of an 
identified Asset, are accounted in line with the 
provisions of Ind AS 116 – Leases, if the 
recognition criteria as specified in the 
Accounting standard are met.  

A lease is classified at the inception date as a 
finance lease or an operating lease by lessor 
whereas lessee will follow the Single lease 
accounting (i.e. same as finance lease).

Lessee will recognize right-of-use asset and 
lease liability, for all leases, except short term 
lease and leases for which underlying asset is 
of low value.

Short term lease is a lease that, at the 
commencement date, has a lease term of 12 
months or less and does not contain a 
purchase option. 

An underlying asset can be of low value only 
if:

(a) the lessee can benefit from use of the 
underlying asset on its own or together 
with other resources that are readily 

Amortization

K. Borrowing Cost:

L. Lease:

Group as a lessee:
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If the effect of the time value of money is 
material, provisions are discounted. 
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
are not recognized in the financial statements 
but are disclosed in the notes.

Provision for warranty related costs are 
recognized on sale of product or service 
rendered based on historical experience and 
technical assessment and reviewed annually.

A provision for onerous contracts other than 
construction contracts is recognized when the 
expected benefits to be derived by the Group 
from a contract are lower than the 
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations 
under the contract. The provision is 
measured at the present value of the lower of 
the expected cost of terminating the contract 
and the expected net cost of continuing with 
the contract.

All financial assets are recognized initially at 
fair value. Subsequently, financial assets are 
measured at fair value or amortized cost 
based on their classification.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a 
financial asset within the scope of Ind-AS 
109, the Group does not separate embedded 
derivatives. Rather, it applies the 
classification requirements contained in Ind 
AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. If the 
hybrid contains a host that is not an asset 
within the scope of Ind AS 109, the embedded 
derivative is separated and accounted at fair 
value.

A financial asset or part of a financial asset is 
derecognized when the rights to receive cash 
flows from the asset have expired.

Receivables are initially recognized at fair 
value, which in most cases approximates the 
nominal value. If there is any subsequent 
indication that those assets may be impaired, 
they are reviewed for impairment.

Cash comprises of cash on hand and demand 
deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term 
highly liquid investments with original 

Warranty provisions:

Onerous contracts:

Q. Financial Assets:

Recognition and measurement:

Embedded derivative:

Derecognition :

Trade and other receivables:

Cash and cash equivalents:

impairment of asset or cash generating units 
(CGU). If on assessment, the asset or CGU is 
considered impaired they are written down to 
the recoverable amount.

Short-term employee benefits are expensed 
as the related service is rendered.

The Group's net obligation in respect of 
defined benefit plans is calculated separately 
for each plan by actuarial valuation 
conducted annually by a qualified actuary 
using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses and the return on 
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect 
of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding 
interest), are recognized immediately in 
other comprehensive income (OCI). Net 
interest expense (income) on the net defined 
liability (assets) is recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss.  When the 
benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan 
is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit 
that relates to past service or the gain or loss 
on curtailment is recognized immediately in 
the statement of profit and loss.

The Group's net obligation in respect of long-
term employee benefits is the amount of 
future benefits that employees have earned 
in return for their service in the current and 
prior periods. The benefit is discounted to 
determine i ts  present value.  Re-
measurements are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss in the period in 
which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group 
contributes to independently administered 
funds as per relevant scheme. These 
contributions are recorded in the statement 
of profit and loss. The Group's liability is 
limited to the extent of contributions made to 
these funds.

Provisions are recognized when the Group 
has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

O. Employee Benefits:

Short-term employee benefits:

Defined benefit plans:

Other long-term employee benefits:

Defined contribution plan:

P. Provisions:
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Offsetting of financial Assets and 
Liabilities:

T. Earnings per share:

U. Cash dividend and non-cash distribution 
to equity shareholders:

V. Events after the reporting period:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are 
offset and the net amount is reported in the 
balance sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis.

The Group presents basic and diluted 
earnings per share data for its ordinary 
shares. Basic earnings per share is calculated 
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of the Group by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year, adjusted for own 
shares held. 

Diluted earnings per share is determined by 
adjusting profit or loss attributable to 
ordinary shareholders and the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, 
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary 
shares.

The Group recognizes a liability to make cash 
or non-cash distributions to equity holders 
when the distribution is authorized and the 
distribution is no longer at the discretion of 
the Group.

Adjusting events are events that provide 
further evidence of conditions that existed at 
the end of the reporting period. The financial 
statements are adjusted for such events 
before authorization for issue. 

Non-adjusting events are events that are 
indicative of conditions that arose after the 
end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting 
events after the reporting date are not 
accounted, but disclosed.

maturities of three months or less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash, which are subject to an insignificant risk 
of change in value.

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group 
applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model 
for measurement and recognition of 
impairment loss on financial assets with 
credit risk exposure.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial 
recognition, at fair value through statement 
of profit and loss as loans, borrowings, 
payables, or derivatives, as appropriate. 

Financial liabilities are measured based on 
their classification at fair value through 
statement of profit and loss, amortized cost 
or fair value through other comprehensive 
income.

A financial liability is derecognized when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires.

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be 
paid in future for goods or services received, 
whether billed by the supplier or not.

After initial recognition, no reclassification is 
made for financial assets which are equity 
instruments and financial liabilities. For other 
financial assets, a reclassification is made 
prospectively only if there is a change in the 
business model for managing those assets.

Impairment of financial assets:

R. Financial Liabilities:

Recognition and measurement:

Derecognition:

Trade and other payables:

S. Financial Assets and Liabilities 
Reclassification:

Reclassification of financial Assets and 
Liabilities:

As per our report of even date attached                     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For V. KRISHNAN & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 001541S
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SURAJ PRAKASH
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D K HOTA
Chairman & Managing Director

(DIN 06600812)
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Date:   27-06-2020
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Particulars Note No.

(` in Lakhs)

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

I. Assets
(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 56,933.07 58,406.80 
(b) Right of Use Asset 3A 874.59 -   
(c) Capital work-in-progress 4 1,542.44 2,545.06 
(d) Intangible assets 5 4,281.20 4,681.36 
(e) Intangible assets under development 6 -   -   
(f) Financial assets
        (i) Investments 7 0.04 0.04 
        (ii) Loans 8 9.96 9.06 
        (iii) Other financial assets 9 54.32 50.75 
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 10 20,839.68 11,788.23 
(h) Other non-current assets 11 6,377.67 6,274.86 
Total non-current assets 90,912.96 83,756.16 

(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 12 200,772.18 170,951.42 
(b) Financial Assets

(i)     Investments 13 -   -   
        (ii)    Trade receivables 14 151,037.35 161,396.29 
        (iii)   Contract Assets 14a 30,384.85 48,916.36 
        (iv)   Cash and cash equivalents 15 2,734.32 2,237.07 
        (v)    Bank Balance Other than (iv) above 15a 50.95 905.87 
        (vi)   Loans 16 - 817.28 
        (vii)  Other financial assets 17 608.97 644.29 
        (viii) Current tax assets (Net) 17a 7,152.98 7,568.91 
(c) Other current assets 18 23,521.02 24,045.35 
Total current assets 416,262.62 417,482.84 
Total Assets 507,175.58 501,239.00 

II. Equity and Liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 19 4,177.22 4,177.22 
(b) Other Equity 221,100.07 214,559.86 
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 225,277.29 218,737.08 
Non-controlling interests 3.75 19.80 
Total Equity 225,281.04 218,756.88 
Liabilities

(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i)  Borrowings 20 20,149.48 30,296.68 
(ii) Other financial liabilities 21 41.60 41.60 

(b) Provisions 22 18,634.91 17,571.38 
(c) Other non-current liabilities 23 98,356.62 33,346.48 
Total non-current liabilities 137,182.62 81,256.14 

(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i)  Borrowings 24 3,811.03 9,917.27 
(ii) Trade payables 25
       (A) Micro & Small Enterprises 2,998.39 2,574.35 
       (B) Other than Micro & Small Enterprises 63,476.06 74,123.13 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 26 12,399.49 3,882.06 

(b) Other current liabilities 27 40,624.96 75,836.36 
(c) Provisions 28 21,401.98 30,924.66 
(d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 29 -   3,968.15 
Total current liabilities 144,711.92 201,225.98 
Total Equity and Liabilities     507,175.58 501,239.00 

Note nos. 1 to 39 includes Significant Accounting Policies and Other Notes to Accounts annexed herewith form part of the financial statement.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 

Particulars Note No.

(` in Lakhs)

For the Year ended 
31st March 2020

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019

I Revenue from operations 30 302,543.50 347,424.84 

II Other income 31 4,856.05 2,323.83 

III Total Income (I+II) 307,399.55 349,748.67 

IV Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 32 188,155.82 195,062.91 

Purchase of stock-in-trade 33 -   -   

Changes in inventories of finished goods, 

stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 34 (29,147.08) 1,651.74 

Employee benefits expense 35 84,807.16 80,574.92 

Finance costs 36 4,073.54 5,960.51 

Depreciation and amortization expense 3,5 7,237.97 7,072.62 

Other expenses 37 50,335.65 46,381.21 

Total Expenses (IV) 305,463.06 336,703.91 

V Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV) 1,936.48 13,044.76 

VI Add/ (Less) : Exceptional items 38 -   -   

VIIProfit / (Loss) before tax (V-VI) 1,936.48 13,044.76 

VIII Tax expense:

(1) Current tax 10 a -   4,668.04 

(2) MAT credit entitlement 10 a -   -   

(3) Deferred tax 10 a (4,431.99) 2,060.55 

IX Profit / (Loss) for the year from continuing operations (VII-VIII) 6,368.47 6,316.17 

X Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations -   -   

XI Tax expense of discontinued operations -   -   

XIIProfit / (Loss) from discontinued operations (after tax) (X-XI) -   -   

XIII Profit / (Loss) for the year (IX+XII) 6,368.47 6,316.17 

XIV Other Comprehensive Income

A (i)  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

     Re-measurement of defined benefit (liability) / asset (4,897.99) (2,053.79)

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be 

       reclassified to profit or loss 10 b 543.69 709.35 

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -   -   

       Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations -   -   

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be 

     reclassified to profit or loss -   -   

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (4,354.30) (1,344.44)

XV Total Comprehensive Income for the year (XIII+XIV) 2,014.17 4,971.73 

Profit for the year 6,368.47 6,316.17 

Attributable to: 

Equity holders of the Group 6,384.52 6,318.11 

Non-controlling interests (16.05) (1.94)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,014.17 4,971.73 

Attributable to: 

Equity holders of the Group 2,030.22 4,973.67 

Non-controlling interests (16.05) (1.94)

XVIEarnings per equity share: (`10/- each) in `

Basic and diluted 39(A) 15.29 15.17 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Particulars

(` in Lakhs)

For the Year ended 
31st March 2020

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax and extraordinary items 1,936.48 13,044.76 
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization expense 7,237.97 7,072.62 
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (23.32) (5.43)
Foreign exchange loss / (gain) (64.94) 44.07 
Allowance for obsolescence 817.90 
Bad debts written off -   -   
Financing Cost 4,073.54 5,960.51 
Interest income (82.85) (194.07)
Other Provisions / Allowances (15,847.18) (4,706.78) (5,735.80) 7,959.80 

Operating Profit / (Loss) before changes in working capital (2,770.29) 21,004.56 
Adjustment for
Inventories (30,693.63) 8,226.01 
Trade & other receivables 26,953.71 (41,158.98)
Other current assets (8,357.26) 2,067.33 
Trade payables (10,158.19) 22,648.03 
Other payables 28,312.54 6,057.16 15,369.49 7,151.88 
Cash generated from operations 3,286.86 28,156.44 
Direct taxes (paid) / refunded 7,297.03 (2,474.53)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities 10,583.89 25,681.91 

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (5,214.95) (6,060.84)
Purchase of intangible assets (500.22) (408.70)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 502.45 35.71 
Sale of intangible assets
Investments in subsidiaries -   -   
Interest Received 84.49 190.69 
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (5,128.23) (6,243.14)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds/(Repayments) from/to ECB & long-term borrowings -   -   
Proceeds/(Repayments) of Inter corporate loans -   -   
Proceeds/(Repayments) of Soft loan (146.06) (609.71)
Financing Cost (4,071.04) (5,962.19)
Adjustment in retained earnings 7,020.23 (57.73)
Dividend & Tax paid for equity shares (2,510.24) (6,289.76)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities 292.89 (12,919.39)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,748.56 6,519.38 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of the year (6,774.33) (13,293.71)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending of the year (Refer Note 15 d) (1,025.77) (6,774.33)

Sub items Main items Sub items Main items

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2020

Particulars

(` in Lakhs)

No. of Shares Amount

Balance as on 01.04.2019

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as on 31.03.2020

A. Equity share capital

41,644,500                     

-      

41,644,500 

        4,164.45                     

-           

4,164.45 

                                                      

177 

B. Other equity

Particulars

Capital 
Reserve

Capital 
Reserve on 
Consolida

tion

Share 
Premium

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Other 
items 
of OCI

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Account

Balance as on 01.04.2019 105.82 26.60 61,204.09
   

118,989.29
    

37,410.84
       

(10,688.22)
   

-
              

1.44
           

10.00
       

7,500.00
     

214,559.86 19.80 214,579.66

Reinstatement Adjustment 
on account of prior period - - -

               
-

                   
7,020.23

         
-

                
-
              

-
              

-
           

-
               

7,020.23 - 7,020.23

Reinstated Balance as 
on 01.04.2019 105.82 26.60

       
44,431.07

       
(10,688.22)

   
-
              

1.44

           
10.00

       
7,500.00

     
221,580.09 19.80 221,599.89

Profit / (Loss) for the year 
Other Comprehensive 
Income for the year

- - -

               
-

                   
6,384.52

         
-

                
-

              
-

              
-

           
-

               
6,384.52 (16.05) 6,368.47

- - -

               

-

                   

-

                   

(4,354.30)

     

-

              

-

              

-

           

-

               

(4,354.30) - (4,354.30)

Total comprehensive 

income for the year

- - -

               

-

                                 

-

              

-

              

-

           

-

               

2,030.22 (16.05) 2,014.17

Transfer to 

 - Debenture Redemption 

Reserve

- - -

               

-

                   

-

                   

-

                

-

              

-

              

-

           

-

               

- - -

 - Retained earnings - - -

               

7.73

                 

(7.73)

                

-

                

-

              

-

              

-

           

-

               

- - -

Transaction with owners

 - Dividend - - -

               

-

                   

(2,082.24)

        

-

                

-

              

-

              

-

           

-

               

(2,082.24) - (2,082.24)

 - Tax on Dividend - - -

               

-

                   

(428.00)

           

-

                

-

              

-

              

-

           

-

               

(428.00) - (428.00)

Balance as on 31.03.2020 105.82 26.60 61,204.09 118,997.02 48,297.62 (15,042.52) - 1.44 10.00 7,500.00 221,100.07 3.75 221,103.82

Non-
controlling 
interests

Total EquityReserves and Surplus Items of OCI Nonimara 
Excellence 

Award 
Reserve

Capital 
Redemp-

tion
Reserve

Debenture 
Redemption 

Reserve

Total 
attributable 

to Equity 
holders of 
the Group

118,989.2961,204.09

(4,354.30)6,384.52

(` in Lakhs)
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Note 3: Consolidated Property, Plant and Equipment
(` in Lakhs)

As at Additions

Deduction / Re-

classification & 

Adjustments As at As at For the Year

Deduction / Re-

classification & 

Adjustments As at As at As at

01.04.2019 during the year during the year 31.03.2020 01.04.2019 during the year 31.03.2020 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Land

Free Hold 1,286.25         -                        -                        1,286.25         0.01              -                  -                         0.01                 1,286.24 1,286.24

Lease Hold 8,542.16         -                        -                        8,542.16         165.45         41.33              (1.18)                      205.60             8,336.56 8,376.71

Buildings 15,552.26      97.57                    0.03                      15,649.86       2,799.69      597.54            1.04                       3,398.27         12,251.59 12,752.57

Plant and Equipment 40,011.40      2,983.81              (236.33)                42,759.01       10,608.21    3,572.10        (43.15)                   14,137.28        28,621.73 29,403.19

Furniture and Fixtures 635.28            38.95                    (0.49)                     673.74            344.27         63.95              (7.38)                      400.84             272.90 291.01

Vehicles

Given on  Lease 466.75            104.56                 (39.04)                  532.27            110.59         74.07              (30.08)                   154.58             377.69 356.16

Own Use 1,525.20         632.86                 (368.57)                1,789.49         367.13         228.30            (76.72)                   518.71             1,270.78 1,158.07

Office Equipment 456.05            51.10                    (0.13)                     506.89            201.94         66.60              0.54                       268.96             237.93 254.11

Roads and Drains 1,657.45         153.99                 (0.56)                     1,810.88         1,150.92      260.15            -                         1,411.07         399.81 506.53

Water Supply Installations 277.62            -                        -                        277.62            56.50            21.24              -                         77.74               199.88 221.12

Railway sidings 886.40            -                        -                        886.40            375.56         87.71              -                         463.27             423.13 510.84

Electrical Installation 2,342.14         96.37                    -                        2,438.51         902.45         268.07            -                         1,170.52         1,267.99 1,439.68

Jigs and Fixtures 2,386.99         93.27                    -                        2,480.26         1,735.92      464.26            -                         2,200.18         280.08 651.07

Special Tools 1,766.31         291.39                 9.29                      2,066.99         1,057.34      292.95            0.02                       1,350.31         716.68 708.97

Computers and Data processing units 1,489.23         689.31                 (24.54)                  2,154.00         998.70         189.52            (24.30)                   1,163.92         990.08 490.53

Total Tangible Assets 79,281.49      5,233.18              (660.34)                83,854.33      20,874.68    6,227.79        (181.21)                 26,921.26        56,933.07 58,406.80

Previous Year 69,343.00      10,325.79            (387.30)                79,281.49       15,087.82    6,141.54        (357.26)                 20,874.69        58,406.80 54,255.18

Particulars Gross carrying value Accumulated depreciation and impairment Net Carrying value

As at Additions

Deduction / Re-

classification & 

Adjustments As at As at For the Year

Deduction / Re-

classification & 

Adjustments As at As at As at

01.04.2019 during the year during the year 31.03.2020 01.04.2019 during the year 31.03.2020 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

ROU Assets 

 Buildings    -                  984.39                 -                        984.39            -                109.80            -                         109.80             874.59 -

Total Right of use Assets -                  984.39                 -                        984.39            -                109.80            -                         109.80            874.59 -

Previous Year

Particulars

Gross carrying value Accumulated depreciation and impairment Net Carrying value

Note 3a: Consolidated Right of Use Assets 

A. Carrying value of vehicles own use 
includes equipment offered to customers 
for trials on No Cost No Commitment 
(NCNC) basis `1355.04 Lakhs (Previous 
Year -  ̀ 1110.51 Lakhs).

B. Property, Plant and Equipment

i) Buildings include carrying value of 
building at Mumbai and Ranchi 
pending registration / katha 

transfer a t  ` 1 5 . 3 4  L a k h s  
(Previous Year - ̀ 15.86 Lakhs)

ii) The group has taken land 
measuring1109 acres and two 
workshops on lease for a period of 
10  years vide Lease Agreement 
dated 5th May 2004, w.e.f. 
28.04.2004 from M/s Bharat Gold 
Mines Limited (BGML) (A Company 
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iii) Lease hold Land includes leased 
land allotted by Kerala Industrial 
Infrastructure Development 
Corporation (KIIDC) measuring 
374.59 acres for a lease premium 
of `2547.21 Lakhs (excluding 
Service Tax) (Previous Year - 
`2547.21 Lakhs excluding Service 
Tax) for 99 years lease period with 
effect from 01.07.2009. The actual 
land handed over by KIIDC was 
measuring 374.16 acres and the 
revised lease premium payable is 
`2544.29 Lakhs only. Adjustment 
in financial statement will be made 
on formal amendment of lease 
agreement by KIIDC.

iv) Lease Hold Land includes land 
measuring 101175.92 Sq. Mtrs 
taken on perpetual lease from 
KIADB (Bangalore Aerospace, SEZ 
Park) at a cost of `5126.00 Lakhs 
(Previous Year - ̀ 5126.00 Lakhs).

v) Lease Hold Land includes land at 
cost `129.41 Lakhs at Hyderabad 
for which registration will be 
completed after development of 
showroom.

vi) No Provision considered necessary 
for impairment of assets as the 
real izable value of assets 
technically assessed is more than 
the carrying cost of these assets.

vii) Free Hold Land includes land 
measuring 560 acres at Mysore 
costing `307.58 Lakhs (including 
addit ional compensation of  
`183.57 Lakhs demanded by 
KIADB) for which title deeds have 
to be obtained from KIADB. As per 
the demand of KIADB, provision of 
interest amounting to `566.48 
Lakhs (Previous Year - `554.00 
Lakhs) up to period 31st March 
2020 has been made. However, 
matter has been taken up with 
KIADB for waiving of interest which 
is pending before KIADB Board. 
Liability for both interest and 
additional compensation has been 

under orders of winding up by 
BIFR), and a sum of `100 Lakhs 
was paid as non-refundable 
deposit, (included under Other 
non-current assets (Note no.11)). 
As per the terms of the Lease 
agreement, this deposit shall be 
adjusted against the outright 
sale/transfer of ownership that 
may be fixed for the property and 
lessee shall be free to construct 
new building/alter the existing 
building/lay roads/fence the land 
in the interest of furthering its 
business to suit its use and on 
expiry of the lease the said building 
shall vest with the lessor on 
payment of consideration based on 
value prevailing on the date of 
handing over of the property. The 
Group had incurred on the above 
land a sum of ̀ 1452.95 lakhs (with 
carying value - `903.83 Lakhs) on 
Buildings (Previous Year - `948.61 
lakhs) included in Property, Plant 
and Equipment as at year end.

Vide order dated 09.07.2013, the 
Hon'ble Supreme Court of India 
upheld the decision of the Union 
Government to float a global 
tender of BGML assets with an 
observation about the existence of 
sub-lease of a portion of the land to 
BEML Ltd expiring on 28.04.2014 
to be included in the tender 
documents. The group filed an 
Interlocutory application before 
the Hon'ble Supreme Court of 
India, praying for exclusion of land 
leased to BEML from the purview of 
g loba l  tender,  wh ich  was  
dismissed. Since the lease 
agreement provides for the 
continuation of the lease even after 
the expiry of lease period on 
28.04.2014 till the final decision of 
the group / Government in this 
regard, the operations of the 
company on the above land is 
continued. Appropriate accounting 
action will be considered based on 
the outcome of the tender process. 
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valuing `540.55 Lakhs (carrying 
value `457.96 Lakhs) taken on 
lease from Asansol Durgapur 
Development Authority, Durgapur 
for a period of 60 years.

xiv) The land is taken on lease from 
urban development dept, Govt of 
West Bengal for a period of 60 
(sixty) years on 7th March, 2011. 
This has been capitalised in the 
books of the Group. As per the 
stipulations mentioned in the said 
lease deed in point no. 25 and 
subsequent clauses, the Group has 
not started the factory within two 
years w.e.f 07th March 2011, it is 
liable to return the possession of 
leased land back to U D Dept, Govt 
of West Bengal and there is open 
right of the Govt of West Bengal to 
cancel the lease and re-enter the 
premises so leased to the Group, If 
the objection is raised from the 
Government regarding the starting 
of the factory, then the company 
will have to surrender the Land, 
since it has already been more than 
2 years of taking the possession. 
However there is no demand from 
Govt of West Bengal in this regard 
till date.

- Plant & Machinery ̀  NIL Lakhs

C. A m o u n t  o f  b o r r o w i n g  c o s t  
capitalised on addition of assets 
during the year is as under:

D. Since there is no investment property in 
the Group as on 31.03.2020, fair value of 
investment property is Nil (Previous Year 
- Nil)

created. Registration will be made 
once the matter is settled with 
KIADB Board.

viii) Free Hold Land measuring 3.647 
acres of land, surrendered to BBMP 
against TDR (at cost) is `4.58 
Lakhs. Free Hold Land measuring 
1.937 acres of land surrendered to 
BBMP for which TDR yet to be 
received (at cost) is ̀ 2.43 Lakhs.

Above TDR will be utilised for 
further construction.

ix) Group has taken action to obtain 
title documents in respect of the 
following immovable properties.

(1) Flat at Roshan comp, Madras - 
`4.04 Lakhs.

(2) Flat at Ashadeep, New Delhi - 
`2.80 Lakhs.

(3) Office building at Nagpur - 
`27.18 Lakhs.

x) The Group has initiated legal action 
to obtain possession of 1.88 acres 
of Land out of 5 acres at Tatisilwai, 
Arra village, Ranchi.

xi) For details of property, plant and 
equipment hypothecated by way of 
a first charge against borrowings 
and other facilities availed, refer 
Note no. 20 and 24

xii) For information on estimated 
capital contracts pertaining to the 
acquisition of property, plant and 
equipment, refer Note no. 39 D II 
a.

xiii) Lease Hold Land (MAMC) includes 
Land measuring 193.67 acres 
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(` in Lakhs)Note 4: Capital work-in-progress

As at 31st March 2020Particulars As at 31st March 2019

Building 364.45 218.54 

Equipment under inspection and in transit -   17.64 

Machinery 1,009.18 2,140.08 

Others 168.80 168.80 

Total 1,542.44 2,545.06 

(` in Lakhs)Note 6: Intangible assets under development (internally generated)

As at 31st March 2020Particulars As at 31st March 2019

-   -   

Total -   -   

(` in Lakhs)Note 7: Non-current Investments

As at 31st 
March 2020

Particulars As at 31st 
March 2019

Investments in equity instruments - unquoted at cost

In Equity Shares of Joint Venture Company:

In BEML Midwest Ltd., 54,22,500 fully paid up Equity shares of `10  each 542.25 542.25 

Less: Allowance for impairment of investment (542.25) (542.25)

-   -   

Investment in Ordinary Shares of Co-operative Societies - 
unquoted at cost

In BEML Consumer Co-operative Society Ltd, KGF, 250 fully paid up 

shares of `10 each 0.03 0.03 

In Gulmohar Mansion Apartments Co-operative Housing Society Limited, 
Bangalore, 10 fully paid up shares of `100 each. 0.01 0.01 

In Twin Star Co-operative Housing Society Ltd, Bombay, 5 fully paid 
up shares of `50 each. -   -   

0.04 0.04 

Total - Unquoted at cost 0.04 0.04 

(` in Lakhs)Note 5: Consolidated Intangible assets

Particulars

Computer software 2,344.44 500.22 -   2,844.66 1,082.17 436.52 -   1,518.69 1,325.97 1,262.27 

Technical Know how 5,755.91 -   -   5,755.91 2,343.83 463.86 -   2,807.69 2,948.22 3,412.08 

TDR against Land 7.01 -   -   7.01 -   -   -   -   7.01 7.01 

Total Intangible 8,107.36 500.22 -   8,607.58 3,426.00 900.38 -   4,326.38 4,281.20 4,681.36 

Assets

Previous Year 7,698.66 408.70 -   8,107.36 2,497.27 931.08 0.24 3,426.00 4,681.36 5,201.39 

Gross carrying value Accumulated amortisation and impairment Net Carrying value

As at
01.04.2019

Additions 
during 

the year

Deduction / 
Re-classifica

tion & 
Adjustments

during 
the year

As at
31.03.2020

As at
01.04.2019

For 
the Year

Deduction / 
Re-classifica

tion & 
Adjustments

during 
the year

As at
31.03.2020

As at
31.03.2020

As at
31.03.2019
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a. BEML along with Midwest Granite 
Private Limited formed a joint venture 
company in 2007 to conduct excavation 
and extraction of mineral resources. The 
agreement was signed in September 
2005 whereby BEML has a 45% share in 
the operations of the joint venture and 
the remaining 55% is held by Midwest 
Granite Private Limited.

b. The Joint Venture Company BEML 
Midwest Ltd. has not prepared its 
financial statements as at 31st March, 
2020 due to litigation pending before 
National Company Law Tribunal. Hence, 
disclosure requirements under Ind AS-
28 (Investments in Associates and Joint 
Ventures) could not be complied with. In 
the absence of financial statements of 
the JV, the same has not been 
consolidated with BEML financial 
statements.

c. The company had issued corporate 
guarantee to Bank for facilities extended 
to BEML Midwest Limited, for `1912.50 

Lakhs. Since BEML Midwest Limited 
failed to pay, the Bank concerned 
invoked the corporate guarantee and 
claimed from the company. However the 
company has refused to pay the claim 
on the ground that the claim relating to 
forward contracts were entered into 
without the approval of board of BEML 
Midwest Limited and that the majority 
shareholder has misappropriated and 
acted beyond the mandate without 
complying with the terms and conditions 
specified by the Board of BEML Midwest 
Limited. The matter is pending before 
Debt Recovery Tribunal (DRT). The 
company does not envisage any cash 
outflow in this regard.

The movement in the allowance for impairment of investment is as follows: (` in Lakhs)

2019-2020Particulars 2018-2019

Balance at the beginning of the year 542.25 542.25 

Impairment losses recognised -   -   

Written off during the year -   -   

Credited to profit or loss -   -   

Balance at the end of the year 542.25 542.25 

Note 8: Non-Current - Loans (` in Lakhs)

As at 31st 
March 2020

Particulars
As at 31st 

March 2019

Unsecured, considered good

Lease Deposits 9.96 9.06 

Inter Corporate Loan -   -   

Total 9.96 9.06 

Lease deposits represent deposits paid as security for office space and flats taken on rent. 

Ind AS 28 (Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures)

NatureNames of Joint Ventures

BEML Midwest Limited Jointly Controlled Entity 45.00 India

% holding
Country of 

Incorporation
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Note 10: Deferred tax assets (net) (` in Lakhs)

As at 31st 
March 2020

Particulars
As at 31st 

March 2019

Deferred Tax Liabilities (DTL)

Property, plant and equipment 4,058.45 6,519.79 

Total DTL  (A) 4,058.45 6,519.79 

Deferred Tax Assets (DTA)

Timing differences under the Income Tax Act,1961       24,829.99 18,239.88 

Others 13.12 13.12 

Gratuity / Leave Liability 55.02 55.02 

Total DTA (B) 24,898.13 18,308.02 

Net Total (B-A) 20,839.68 11,788.23 

(` in Lakhs)

31st March 2020Particulars 31st March 2019

Current tax expense:

Current tax / Minimum alternate tax (MAT) -   4,668.04 

MAT credit entitlement -   -   

Adjustment of tax related to earlier years -   -   

-   4,668.04 

Deferred tax (income)/expense:

Origination & reversal of temporary differences (4,431.99) 2,060.55 

Total deferred tax (income)/expense (4,431.99) 2,060.55 

Tax expenses (4,431.99) 6,728.59 

Note 10: Income taxes

a) Amount recognised in profit or loss

The substantively enacted tax rate as on 31 March 2020 is 34.94% and as on 31 March 2019 was 
34.94% for deferred tax purposes.

Note 9: Non-current - Other financial assets (` in Lakhs)

As at 31st 
March 2020

Particulars
As at 31st 

March 2019

Security Deposit with Customers -   -   

Deposit with service providers 54.32 50.75 

Total 54.32 50.75 
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(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

31st March 2019

Profit before tax from continuing operation 1,936.48 13,044.76 

Tax using the Group's domestic tax rate (Income tax) 34.94% 676.69 34.94% 4,558.36 

Tax effect of:

Carry Forward Loss 0.00% -  0.10% 13.35 

Weighted Deduction for R and D Expenditure -109.94% (2,128.97) -51.47% (6,713.56)

Non deductible expenses 75.00% 1,452.29 16.42% 2,141.85 

Minimum Alternate Tax 0.00% -   35.78% 4,668.04 

Tax incentive 0.00% -  - -   

Deferred tax -228.87% (4,431.99) 15.80% 2,060.55 

Total income tax expense for the year -228.87% (4,431.99) 51.58% 6,728.59 

c) Reconciliation of effective income tax rate

31st March 2020

Rate Amount Rate Amount

d) Movement in deferred tax balances (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Property, plant and equipment (6,138.56) (381.23) (6,519.79) 2,461.34 (4,058.45)

Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 7,403.31 593.91 7,997.22 3,264.46 11,261.68 

Voluntary Retirement Expenses -   -   -   -   - 

Provision for Property Tax 123.73 1.20 124.93 - 124.93 

Provision for Gratuity 3,872.72 (2,469.01) 1,403.71 (1,350.41) 53.30

Provision for Leave Salary 5,190.95 54.07 5,245.02 119.85 5,364.87 

Provision for Performance Related Pay 72.68 149.21 221.89 (221.89) -   

Provision for Contributory medical Scheme 1,925.92 (55.95) 1,869.97 97.09 1,967.06

Provision for Pension 431.81 35.78 467.59 (467.59) -   

Provision for wage revision 954.62 11.12 965.74 (952.62) 13.12 

Provision for pending legal cases 11.61 0.33 11.94 (7.82) 4.12 

Provision for Direct Expenditure -   -   -   253.63 253.63 

DTA related to Carry forward Loss FY 2019-20 -   -   -   1,235.95 1,235.95 

MAT Credit related to prior period -   -   -   4,075.77 4,075.77 

DTA related to Provision for Gratuity & Contributory 
Medical Scheme (OCI) -   -   -   543.70 543.70 

Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 13,848.79 (2,060.57) 11,788.22 9,051.46 20,839.68 

 As on 
1st April 

2018 

 Recognised in 
profit or 

loss during 
2019-20

 As at 
31st March 

2019 

 Recognised in 
profit or 

loss during 
2018-19

 As at 
31st March 

2020

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

31st March 2019

Re-measurement (losses) / gains on post 
employment defined benefit plans (4,897.99) 543.69 (4,354.30) (2,053.79) 709.35 (1,344.44)

Total (4,897.99) 543.69 (4,354.30) (2,053.79) 709.35 (1,344.44)

b) Amount recognised in OCI

31st March 2020

Before 
Tax

Tax 
(expense) 

benefit

Net of 
Tax

Before 
Tax

Tax 
(expense) 

benefit

Net of 
Tax
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e) Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of the following items, because it is not 

probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary 

difference can be utilised.

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

31st March 2019

Deductible temporary differences not 
expected to be utilised -   -   -   -   

Tax losses -   -   -   -   

-   -   -   -   

31st March 2020

Gross 
Amount

Unrecognised 
tax effect

Gross 
Amount

Unrecognised 
tax effect

f)  Tax losses carried forward
Unrecognised tax losses carried forward expire as follows:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Expire

Carry forward business loss (3,536.96) 31.03.2028 -  -

  - -  

Never expire

Unabsorbed depreciation -   -   

(3,536.96) -   

31st March 
2020

Expiry 
date 

31st March 
2019

Expiry 
date 

A) Implementation of Appendix C to IND AS-12 Income Taxes

B) Adoption of Income Tax Rates

C) Disclosure under Ind AS-8 , for adjustment of prior period items

1. Nature of the Prior Period Item:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Govt. of India vide notification dated 30.03.2019 has 
introduced Appendix C to Ind AS 12 i.e. Uncertainity over Income Tax Treatment w.e.f 01.04.2019 
which calls for recognition and measurement of Tax expenses, Tax Liabilities/Assets when there is any 
uncertainity over Income Tax Treatment. The Company has assessed the effect of the above Appendix C 
to Ind AS-12 and determined that there is no impact of the same on the accounts of FY 2019-20.

The Ministry of Law & Justice, Govt. of India vide Gazette notification dated 20.09.2019 introduced 
section 115BAA with an option to choose revised Tax structure applicable w.e.f 01.04.2019 to Domestic 
Companies without claiming specific deductions u/s 35(2AB), deduction under Chapter-VIA, MAT Credit 
benefits, Carry Forward Business Losses, Additional Depreciation u/s 32(1)(iia) and other deductions as 
specified in the said section.

There was a mistake in Computation of Total Taxable Income and Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities while 
calculating Tax Liability in the Books of accounts in FY 2016-17, 2017-18 and 2018-19 which were 
mainly on account of add back of OCI amounts in Gratuity and PRMS and not claiming full deductions for 
other expenses like provision for PRP, Provision for Wage Revision etc. This led to computation of higher 
tax liabilities with consequential impact of payment of extra Taxes in these years as well as excess 
utilization of MAT Credit.
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2. Amount Of correction : 
(` in Lakhs)

Financial Year

Upto 2016-17 3231 (91) 3140

2017-18 494 1405 1899

2018-19 351 1631 1982

TOTAL 4076 2945 7021

Deferred Tax 
Assets 

(for MAT credit) 
(1)

Current Tax 
Assets 

(for Refund Due)
(2)

Retained 
Earnings
(3=1+2)

3. Such mistakes have been adjusted to the opening Balance of Retained Earnings as of 
01.04.2019.

4. The impact of the said error have been carried out by adjustment to Retained Earnings as of 
01.04.2019.

Note 11: Other non-current assets
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Capital Advances 150.80 263.93 

Less: Allowance for doubtful Capital Advances (21.55) (21.55)

Advance MAMC consortium [see note (a) below] 6,053.89 5,851.03 

Employee Advance 108.81 92.74 

Prepayments 75.61 78.60 

Gold coins on Hand 10.11 10.11 

Total 6,377.67 6,274.86 

Due by officers of the company 6.83 8.66

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

 The Company has entered into a 

Consor t ium Agreement  (MAMC 

Consortium) with M/s. Coal India Limited 

(CIL) and M/s. Damodar Valley 

Corporation (DVC) on 08.06.2010 for 

acquiring specified assets of M/s. Mining 

and Allied Machinery Corporation 

Limited (under liquidation). The 

agreement, inter-alia, provided for 

formation of a Joint Venture company 

with a shareholding pattern of 48:26:26 

among BEML, CIL and DVC respectively. 

The Company has paid the proportionate 

share of `4800.00 Lakhs towards the 

total bid consideration of `10000.00 

Lakhs towards the said acquisition, 

based on the order passed by the Hon'ble 

High Court of Calcutta. The said assets 

are taken possession by the MAMC 

Consortium.  Further, the Company has 

incurred a sum of `1253.89 Lakhs 

(Previous Year - `1051.03 Lakhs) 

towards maintenance, security and other 

related expenditure. The expenditure 

incurred by CIL and DVC on account of 

this proposal is not ascertained. The total 

sum of `6053.89 Lakhs (Previous Year - 
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owned subsidiary company for the 

intended purpose of JV formation. 

Shareholders' agreement, as duly 

approved by the Boards of all the three 

members of the consortium, has been 

submitted to Ministry of Defence for 

necessary approval.  After obtaining the 

said approval, MIL, would be converted 

into a JV Company. The Company has 

advanced a sum of `602.80 Lakhs 

(Previous Year - `602.39 Lakhs) on 

account of MIL, which is included under 

the head 'Advances to related parties'.

`5851.03 Lakhs) is disclosed as 'Advance 

to MAMC consortium', pending allotment 

of equity shares in the capital of the JV 

company. Since the company intends to 

treat this as a long term investment, 

independent valuation of the assets 

taken over has been done and there is no 

diminution in value of investments. 

Formulation of business plan and 

approval of shareholders' agreement 

from MOD is being pursued.

Further, a company in the name of 

'MAMC Industries Limited' (MIL) was 

formed and incorporated as a wholly-

Note 12:  Inventories (Lower of cost and Net realisable value) (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Raw materials & Components 54,735.02 54,025.45 

Less: Allowance for obsolescence - Raw Material (1,659.91) (1,189.75)

Raw materials & Components in Transit 1,291.69 2,580.92 

Stores and Spares 1,850.51 1,928.35 

Work-in-Progress 87,582.63 70,387.75 

Less: Allowance for obsolescence - WIP (923.60) (778.50)

Finished Goods 28,672.20 15,530.13 

Less: Allowance for obsolescence - Finished Goods (1,939.57) (977.02)

Finished Goods in Transit -   585.96 

Stock of Spares 32,470.17 30,069.60 

Less: Allowance for obsolescence - Stock of Spares (3,854.19) (4,414.02)

Less: Allowance for shortages - Stock of Spares (1,014.12) -   

Stock of Spares in Transit 97.59 239.25 

Hand tools 2,259.65 2,283.31 

Scrap 1,183.62 659.02 

Patterns & Other Materials 20.48 20.97 

Unrealised Profit on Stock -   -   

Total 200,772.18 170,951.42 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

a. Raw materials & Components include 

materials lying with sub contractors 

`2268.11 Lakhs (Previous Year - 

`2376.66 Lakhs). Of these, confirmation 

from the parties is awaited for `331.85 

Lakhs (Previous Year - ̀ 850.15 Lakhs).  

b. The closing stock of work-in-progress 

and finished goods are stated at lower of 

standard cost, which approximates to 

actuals, and net realisable value. The 

difference between the actual cost of 

production and the standard cost is not 
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material.

c. Variances arising on account of 

difference between standard cost and 

the actual cost, on account of  change in 

the nature of inputs from bought-out to 

internally manufactured or vice versa, 

timing difference between standard cost 

and actual occurrence during the 

financial period and fluctuations in  the 

material prices, is adjusted in the cost of 

production in order not to carry forward 

the period variances to subsequent 

financial period.

d. Allowance towards obsolescence is made 

as per the Board approved provisioning 

norms and is based on ageing of 

inventory.

Note 13: Current Investments (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

- - 

Total - - 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

Note 14: Trade receivables (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good

Outstanding for period exceeding six months * 34,658.48 58,277.59 

Others 116,378.88 103,118.70

Unsecured, considered doubtful 

Outstanding for period exceeding six months 22,524.83 19,018.66

Allowance for bad and doubtful trade receivables (22,524.83) (19,018.66)

Total 151,037.35 161,396.29 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

* Trade receivables - Outstanding for period 

exceeding six months include `9507.47 

Lakhs (Previous Year `9507.47 Lakhs) 

towards PMS Bridge contract, in respect of 

the following :

i) amount outstanding towards exchange 

rate difference and escalation for import of 

components in respect of a long term 

contract for Design, Development and 

Supply, entered into with Ministry of 

Defence (MoD) in 2001  `4929.12 Lakhs  

and 

ii) Dollies supplied to MoD ̀ 4578.35 Lakhs.         

iii) This contract provided for import content 

denominated in US Dollar with a clause for 

escalation and exchange rate variation. 

Since BEML's claim for exchange rate 

variation for part of the supply was in 

EURO, the customer insisted for contract 

amendment in this regard. The company 

has  received the requisite amendment  to  

the  contract  in this regard from   MOD 

towards acceptance of  BEML's claim on 

account of exchange rate variation in Euro . 

Accordingly claims have been lodged which 

are under process.

iv) In respect of Dollies, all the Dollies (66 

no's) have been supplied to the customer.
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The movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful trade receivables is as follows:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year 19,018.66 16,714.92

Impairment losses recognised 4,332.34 2,618.37 

Written off during the year (682.56) (314.63)

Credited to profit or loss (143.61) -   

Transfers to allowance for doubtful claims (note 18) -   -   

Balance at the end of the year 22,524.83 19,018.66 

2019-20 2018-19

Note 14a: Contract Assets
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Rail & Metro 30,384.85 48,857.05 

Mining & Construction -   59.31 

Defence -   -   

Total 30,384.85 48,916.36 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

Note 15: Cash and cash equivalents
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Balances with Banks 2,734.32 2,237.07 

Cash on hand -   -   

Total 2,734.32 2,237.07 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

Note 15a: Bank Balance Other than (Note 15) above
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Balances with Banks - Unclaimed Dividend 50.95 905.87 

Total 50.95 905.87 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019
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a. The Group earns no interest on balances 

with banks in current accounts.

b. Balances with banks include the 

following on which there were 

restrictions placed on use and / or held 

on behalf of third parties:

ESCROW account balance to be 

distributed among consortium members 

`2666.43 Lakhs (Previous Year -  

`2169.02 Lakhs) 

c. Out of the Cash Credit Limit of `120000 

Lakhs sanctioned to the Group by 

Consortium Bankers, the amount drawn 

by the Group as on 31st March is 

`3811.03 Lakhs (Previous Year ̀ 9917.27 

Lakhs) (Refer Note No. 24).

d. For the purpose of the cash flow 

statement, cash and cash equivalents 

comprise the following:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Balances with Banks 2,734.32 2,237.07 

Balances with Banks - Unclaimed Dividend 50.95 905.87 

Cheques, drafts on hand -   -   

Cash on hand -   -   

Less: Bank overdraft/Cash credit facility (3,811.03) (9,917.27)

Total (1,025.77) (6,774.33)

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

Note 16: Current Loans (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good

Lease Deposits - -   

Inter Corporate Loan -   817.28 

Total - 817.28 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

Note 17: Current - Other financial assets (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Security Deposit with Customers 107.39 107.39 

Earnest Money Deposit 89.33 89.33 

Deposit with service providers 410.52 444.19 

Interest accrued on bank deposits 1.74 3.38 

Derivative asset -   -   

Total 608.97 644.29 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019
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Note 17a: Current tax assets (Net)
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Advance Income Tax 200.00 3,408.57 

Income Tax Refund 6,489.51 2,482.52 

Tax Deducted at Source 463.47 1,677.82 

Total 7,152.98 7,568.91 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

Note 18: Other Current Assets
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Advances to Related Parties 135.51 135.48 

Balances with Public Utility concerns 679.99 662.82 

Less: Allowance for doubtful Balances with 
Public Utility concerns (170.51) (170.51)

Balances with Govt. departments for Customs Duty, 
Excise Duty, GST etc., 1,133.94 53.49 

Advance to Vendors 12,692.54 9,781.29 

Less: Allowance for doubtful advances to Vendors (3,868.39) (3,882.76)

Employee Advance 296.19 284.85 

Duties and Taxes 3,121.42 3,081.91

Indirect Taxes -GST 2,280.20 5,849.56

Prepayments 1,643.53 1,520.05 

Claims receivable 10,745.57 11,885.57 

Less: Allowance for doubtful claims (5,684.77) (5,527.15)

GST on stock transfers 515.81 370.75 

Unbilled revenue -   -   

Total 23,521.02 24,045.35 

Due by Officers of the Company 31.48 26.66

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

i. Claims receivable includes claims lodged 

pending under reconciliation amounting 

to `2610.74 Lakhs (Previous Year - 

`2610.74 Lakhs). 

ii. For claims outstanding from Railway 

board, an Inter-Ministerial Committee 

has been formed by MoD to resolve the 

issues. 

The Group doesn't expect any material 

impact on the final realization of the 

above amounts.
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(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2019

Authorised :

Equity Shares of `10 each 100000000 10,000.00 100000000 10,000.00 

Issued :

Equity Shares of `10 each 41900000 4,190.00 41900000 4,190.00 

Subscribed :

Equity Shares of `10 each 41644500 4,164.45 41644500 4,164.45 

Paid-up : 

Equity Shares of `10 each, fully paid-up 41644500 4,164.45 41644500 4,164.45 

Forfeited Shares (amount originally paid) :   

Equity Shares of Paid-up value `5 each 255500 12.77 255500 12.77 

Total 4,177.22 4,177.22 

As at 31st March 2020

Number Amount

Note 19: Equity share capital

Number Amount

Rights and restrictions attached to equity 

shares

The Group has only one class of  share, i.e., 

equity shares having the face value of `10 per 

share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to 

one vote per share. Dividend is paid in Indian 

Rupees. The dividend recommended by the 

Board of Directors is subject to the approval of 

the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Group, 

equity shareholders will be entitled to receive 

remaining assets of the Group after distribution 

of all liabilities. The distribution will be in 

proportion to the number of equity shares held by 

the shareholders.

Particulars

Shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to 

contracts without payment being received 

in cash Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Shares allotted as fully paid up by way 

of bonus shares Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Shares bought back Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Number of Shares

2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16

Disclosure requirements for 5 years

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2019

Outstanding as at Opening Date 41,644,500 4,164.45 41,644,500 4,164.45 

Add: Issued during the period -   -   -   -   

Less: Buy-back during the period (if any) -   -   -   -   

Outstanding as at Closing Date 41,644,500 4,164.45 41,644,500 4,164.45 

As at 31st March 2020

Number of 
Shares

Amount

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period :

AmountNumber of 
Shares
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Equity Shares held by shareholders having 5% or more As at 31st March 2019

President of India 22,500,000 54.03 22,500,000 54.03

HDFC Trustee Company Limited (PAN wise) 3,619,881 8.69 3,715,380 8.92

As at 31st March 2020

Number of 
Shares

 % held Number of 
SharesName of the shareholder  % held 

No shares of the Group is held by its subsidiaries. The Group does not have any holding company.

No shares of the Group is reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale 

of shares / disinvestment.

The Board of Directors had approved an Interim Dividend of `2.50 per equity share i.e 25% on 

equity shares of ̀ 10 each on 13.03.2020 which was distributed among eligible shareholders. 

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 27-06-2020 recommended a dividend of ̀ 3.50 per 

equity share (i.e., 35%) for the financial year ended 31st March 2020, subject to the approval of 

shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If approved, this would result in a cash 

outflow of approximately ̀ 1457.56 Lakhs.

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2019

Debentures

Secured Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures, 

secured by exclusive first charge on 46 Acres and 

28 Guntas of BEML Residential Township Land and 

Buildingsthereon (Bangalore Complex). Rate of 

Interest 9.24% 20,000.00 10,000.00 30,000.00 -   

Term Loans

(a)   Secured from Banks -   -   -   -   

(b)   Unsecured from other parties

       i. Inter corporate loans  against Group's 

           corporate guarantee (from Coal India) -   -   -   -   

       ii. Soft Loan - Interest Free Loan from 

           Govt of Kerala 149.48 149.48 296.68 148.34

149.48 149.48 296.68 148.34

Total 20,149.48 10,149.48 30,296.68 148.34 

As at 31st March 2020

Non-Current

Note 20: Non-current Borrowings

Current Non-Current Current

(` in Lakhs)

Coupon Rate

9.24% p.a Payable semi-annually on 18th May & 
18th November every year 10000.00 10000.00 10000.00 

2020-21 

Maturity Pattern of Secured Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures :

 2021-22  2022-23 
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(` in Lakhs)

Soft Loan - Interest free Loan, Re-payable in 10 equal 
installments in 5 years 188.80 188.80 

Terms of repayment of Soft Loan - Interest free Loan from Govt. of Kerala

 2020-21  2021-22 

Note 21: Non-current - Other financial liabilities (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Deposit from vendors 41.60 41.60 

Total 41.60 41.60 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

Note 22: Provisions (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Provision for employee benefits
for Leave Salary 12,032.19 11,878.53 
for Post retirement medical scheme 3,147.66 2,996.09 

Provision-others
for warranty 150.00 158.00 
for unexpired obligations 3,305.06 2,538.76

Total 18,634.91 17,571.38 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

1. For movement in the provisions during the year refer Note no. 28

2. The provision for employee benefits represents annual leave and vested long service 
entitlements accrued.

3. Warranty provisions are recognised on a contract-by-contract basis for goods sold over the 
warranty period. The provision is based on estimates of probable likelihood of product failure 
and returns based on current sales level and past experience.

4. Provision for unexpired obligations is towards supply of Backup Spares against guaranteed 
availability contracts.

Note 23: Other non-current liabilities (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Advances from customers 98,286.74 33,237.18 

Staff related 30.57 28.38 

Statutory Dues -   -   

Deferred government grant 39.32 80.92 

Total 98,356.62 33,346.48 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019
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a. Group received an interest free loan of ̀ 944.00 Lakhs from Government of Kerala (Note 20). 

The same has been initially recognised at fair value and the difference between the proceeds 

and fair value is recognised as deferred government grant. 

The government grant income is amortised to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the 

term of interest free loan (Note 31).

Note 24: Current Borrowings (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Repayable on demand from banks

Secured

Cash Credit & Short Term Loans (secured by first charge by 
way of hypothecation of Inventories, Bills receivable, 
Book Debts and all other movables both present and future) 3,811.03 9,917.27 

Unsecured -   -   

Total 3,811.03 9,917.27 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

Note 25: Trade Payables (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Total outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises 2,998.39 2,574.35 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
& small enterprises 63,476.06 74,123.13 

Total 66,474.46 76,697.48 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

Micro and Small Enterprises (MSE)

The information under MSMED Act, 2006 has been disclosed to the extent such vendors have been 

identified by the Group. The details of amounts outstanding to them based on available 

information with the Group is as under :
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(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Amount due and Payable at the year end

- Principal 26.37 -   

- Interest on above Principal -   -   

Payments made during the year after the due date

- Principal 143.58 87.18 

- Interest -   -   

Interest due and payable for principals already paid 2.56 0.74 

Total Interest accrued and remained unpaid at year end 2.56 0.74 

Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 7.71 5.15 
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 
disallowance as deductible expenditure under section 23 
of MSMED Act, 2006.

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

Note 26: Current - Other financial liabilities (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Current maturities of long term debt (refer note  20) 10,149.48 148.34 

Deposit from vendors 763.63 710.54 

Earnest Money Deposit from vendors 417.77 1,099.64 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1,017.67 1,017.67

Interest accrued and due on borrowings -   -   

Unclaimed dividend 50.95 905.87 

Total 12,399.49 3,882.06 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019
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Note 27: Other current liabilities (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Other payables  

a. Staff related dues 1,296.02 2,202.68 

b. Statutory dues 6,374.78 5,441.55 

c. Advances from customers 20,974.33 51,920.05 

d. Service vendors 8,390.46 6,722.71 

e. Civil contractors and Capital payments 3,542.35 3,606.57 

f. Liability for wage revision - executives -   5,897.19

Interest due on MSE vendors 7.71 5.15 

Deferred government grant (refer note 23 a) 39.32 40.46 

Total 40,624.96 75,836.36 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

Civil contractors and Capital payments includes ₹2354.92 Lakhs (Previous Year - ₹2354.92 Lakhs) 

pertaining to Bank Guarantee Encashed against 18MW Windmill project due to Non fulfilment of 

Contractual obligation.

Note 28: Provisions (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Provision for employee benefits

for Gratuity 4,572.27 4,069.51 

for Leave Salary 3,322.97 3,132.95 

for Performance Related Pay 425.00 1,125.00 

for Post retirement medical scheme 4,037.02 2,355.24 

for Officers Pension 1,604.00 1,338.11 

for Wage revision 178.36 10,156.27

Provision-others

for pending legal cases 11.79 34.17 

for warranty 6,424.96 6,269.64 

for unexpired obligations 825.61 935.00 

for onerous contract -   1,123.57 

for tax on interim dividend -   385.20 

Total 21,401.98 30,924.66 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019
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Movement in Provisions (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Gratuity -   4,069.51 4,437.26 3,934.50 -   -   4,572.27 

Leave Salary 11,878.53 3,132.95 5,555.16 5,211.47 -   12,032.20 3,322.97 

Post retirement 
medical scheme 2,996.09 2,355.24 2,530.96 697.61 -   3,147.66 4,037.02 

Performance 
Related Pay -   1,125.00 -   700.00 -   -   425.00 

Officers Pension -   1,338.11 1,604.00 1,338.11 -   -   1,604.00 

Pay Revision -   10,156.27 10.20 9,772.80 215.31 - 178.36 

Pending legal cases -   34.17 0.30 0.60 22.08 - 11.79 

Warranty 158.00 6,269.64 4,865.54 4,643.44 74.78 150.00 6,424.96 

Unexpired Obligation 2,538.76 935.00 1,467.31 610.40 200.00 3,305.06 825.61 

onerous contract 1,123.57 -   -   1,123.57 - -   

tax on interim 
dividend 385.20 428.01 813.21 -   -   -   

Total 17,571.38 30,924.66 20,898.73 27,722.14 1,635.74 18,634.91 21,401.98 

As at 01.04.2019

Non-current Current
Additions Utilization Reversal

As at 01.04.2020

Non-current Current

Note 29: Current tax liabilities (Net) (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Provision for Income tax -   3,968.15 

Less: MAT credit entitlement -   -   

Total -   3,968.15 

As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019
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Note 30: Revenue from Operations (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

(a) sale of products:

Castings -   -   

Earth Moving Equipment 79,050.10 95,538.20 

Rail  & Metro Products 103,356.58 147,552.64

Defence Products 28,199.96 15,925.17 

Spare Parts 72,414.26 68,784.92 

Sub-total 283,020.90 327,800.93 

(b) sale of services;

Equipment Servicing 16,783.99 16,899.07 

Sub-total 16,783.99 16,899.07 

(C) other operating revenue

Wind Energy 1,604.80 1,104.79 

Sale of Scrap 1,133.81 1,620.05 

Sub-total 2,738.61 2,724.84 

(d) Inter Segment Sales -   -   

Revenue from operations 302,543.50 347,424.84 

For the Year ended 
31st March 2020

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019

A. i.  GST on Revenue from Operations up 

to March 2020 is `55156.04 Lakhs 

(Previous Year `48488.44 Lakhs). 

GST has not been included in the 

Revenue from Operations.

ii. Revenue includes `5671.18 Lakhs  

(Previous Year: `1303.30 Lakhs)  on 

account of Sale of 82 No. of 

equipments "Bill and hold sales" basis 

recognised  in accordance with Ind 

AS-115. This does not bear any 

custodian charges.

iii. Revenue includes `Nil Lakhs 

(Previous Year - `3403.16 Lakhs sale 

on account of  1 No BH150E and 1 No 

BH205E Dump Truck) on the basis of 

Sale cum trail . A provision of `NIL 

Lakhs (Previous Year -  `555.63 

Laskhs) has been made towards 

unsatisfied performace obligation 

during the year.

iv. Revenue from operation includes 

`1450.20 lakhs (Previous Year 

`1920.02 Lakhs) towards export 

sales.

B.   1. Revenue is recognized over time on 

the contracts for metro cars supply 

and service contracts wherever 

transfer of control on goods/services 

and performance obligation satisfied 

over time. All other revenue is 

recognized at a point in time when 

control transfers.

2. Revenue from Operations include 

`30384.85 Lakhs and `Nil Lakhs in 

respect of Metro Contracts and 

service contracts in M&C business  

(Previous Year - `43,725.72 Lakhs 

and `59.31 Lakhs respectively) 

recognized as Contract Assets, due to 
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adoption of Ind AS 115. 

3. In case of metro supply contracts and  

Equipment Rehabilitation and Mining 

Aggregates Repairs Contracts, for 

determination of transaction price for 

the purpose of recognizing revenue 

over time, Input Method has been 

considered .

(` in Lakhs)

Details

Receivables 29,218.80 22,220.18 

Contract Assets 30,384.85 48,916.36 

Contract Liabilities -   -   

Balance as on 
31.03.2020

Balance as on 
01.04.2019

4. Following are the closing  and opening balances of Receivables, Contract Assets and Contract 

liabilities (which are measured under Input Method);

5. Payments under the Metro Supply  

Contracts are released by customers 

upon completion of milestones of Cost 

centers identified in the contracts.

6. Payments are released by customers  

under Equipment Rehabilitation and 

Aggregates Repairs Contracts  upon 

completion of Repair/Rehabilitation, 

delivery and acceptance of the items at 

Customer site as indicated in the 

Contract.

7. Warranties: In respect of Metro 

Contracts,  Defect Liability periods are 

applicable till taking over of Train sets by 

the Customer.

8. Standard Warranty is provided for a 

period of 12 months Or 4000 hours of 

satisfactory performance of Equipment 

(Mining & Construction) after delivery 

and commissioning. However warranty 

for Electrical items is for 12 months/3000 

hrs  from the date of commissioning 

whichever is earlier.

9. `375026.30 Lakhs and `Nil Lakhs 

(Previous Year - `65435.59 Lakhs for 

Metro Contracts and `240.24 Lakhs) for 

Mining Equipment Rehabilitation and 

Aggregates Repairs Contracts, is the 

aggregate amount of transaction price 

allocated to the performance obligations 

that are unsatisfied  as of the end of the 

reporting period and Company expects 

to recognize this revenue in the 

subsequent years.

10. Following is the reconciliation of amount 

of revenue recognized in the statement 

of P&L on recognition of Contract Assets;

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Total Contract Assets 30,384.85 

Adjustment on the contract price towards discounts, rebate, refunds etc., -   

Amount
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Note 31: Other income (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Interest Income

- From Deposits -   0.34 

- From Inter Corporate Loans 58.59 151.59 

- From Other Advances -   -   

- From Income tax refund 52.94 -   

- Finance income on lease deposits 0.90 0.99 

- Others 23.36 41.15

Government grant income 42.73 42.73 

Export incentives 82.78 82.19 

Dividend Income

- Dividend Received from Subsidiary -   13.47 

- Other Dividends -   -   

Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 23.37 6.20 

Provisions written back

- Doubtful trade receivables & advances 204.45 -   

- Others 1,643.90 11.57 

Foreign exchange gain 1,153.35 -   

Other non-operating income 1,569.68 1,973.60 

Total 4,856.05 2,323.83 

For the Year ended 
31st March 2020

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019

a. Tax Deducted at Source on Income (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Interest on Inter Corporate Loans 5.86 15.15 

For the Year ended 
31st March 2020

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019

Note 32: Cost of materials consumed (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Cost of materials consumed 188,155.82 195,062.91 

For the Year ended 
31st March 2020

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019
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Note 33: Purchase of stock-in-trade (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Purchase of stock-in-trade -   -   

For the Year ended 
31st March 2020

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019

Note 34: Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Opening Stock 

Finished goods 15,159.93 18,937.82 

Work-in-progress 69,609.25 67,564.80 

Scrap 659.02 556.46

85,428.20 87,059.08 

   

Closing Stock

Finished goods 26,732.63 15,139.07 

Work-in-progress 86,659.03 69,609.25 

Scrap 1,183.62 659.0

114,575.28 85,407.34

(Increase) / Decrease

Finished goods (11,572.70) 3,798.75 

Work-in-progress (17,049.78) (2,044.45)

Scrap (524.60) (102.56)

Total (29,147.08) 1,651.74 

For the Year ended 
31st March 2020

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019

Note 35: Employee benefits expense (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Salaries, Wages & Bonus 64,512.51 63,028.83 

Leave Salary 5,555.26 4,099.37 

Contribution to:

  - Gratuity Fund 1,095.18 1,127.16 

  - Provident Fund and Other Funds 6,265.16 5,673.15 

Post retirement medical scheme 975.06 970.93 

Staff welfare expenses 7,383.36 6,110.79 

 - Less receipts 979.36 435.31 

Net staff welfare expenses 6,403.99 5,675.48 

Total 84,807.16 80,574.92 

For the Year ended 
31st March 2020

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019
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A. Ind AS 19 (Employee Benefits) 

a. Leave Salary

This is an unfunded employee benefit plan categorized under other long term employee 

benefits in terms of Ind AS 19. The obligation for compensated absence has been actuarially 

valued and liability provided accordingly. 

(` in Lakhs)

Actuarial Assumptions

Mortality Table 2006-08 (IALM) 2006-08 (IALM)
                                                                                             (Ultimate)            (Ultimate)

Discount rate 6.83% 7.59%

Rate of escalation in salary 4.00% 5.00%

Current Year
(Unfunded)

Previous Year
(Unfunded)

b. Post Retirement Medical Scheme

1. Employees

(i) The Group has a post retirement defined benefit medical scheme where an insurance 

policy is taken by the Group for providing mediclaim benefits to the superannuated 

employees who opt for the scheme. The Group pays 90% insurance premium and the 

balance 10% is paid by the superannuated employees.
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(ii) The results of the actuarial study for the obligation of the medical benefit as computed 

by the actuary are shown below:

(` in Lakhs)

Actuarial study analysis 

Principal actuarial assumptions

Discount rate 6.83% 7.59%

Range of compensation increase 4.00% 5.00%

Attrition rate 0.49% 0.55%

Components of income statement charge

Current Service Cost 67.40 120.58 

Interest Cost 220.65 281.61 

Total income statement charge 288.05 402.19

Movements in net defined benefit liability

Net obligation at the beginning of the year 3,390.12 3,710.22

Employer contributions (663.52) (537.59)

Total expense recognised in profit or loss 288.05 402.19 

Total amount recognised in OCI 1,555.90 (184.70)

Net obligation at the end of the year 4,570.55 3,390.12 

Current Year Previous Year
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(` in Lakhs)

Actuarial study analysis 

Reconciliation of benefit obligations 

Obligation at start of the year 3,390.12 3,710.22

Current service cost 67.40 120.58 

Interest cost 220.65 281.61 

Benefits paid directly by the company (663.52) (537.59)

Extra payments or expenses / (income) -   -   

Obligation of past service cost -   -   

Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligations 1,555.90 (184.70)

DBO at the end of the year 4,570.55 3,390.12 

Re-measurements

Actuarial gain/(loss) due to changes in financial assumptions -   -   

Actuarial gain/(loss) on account of experience adjustments 1,555.90 (184.70)

Total actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in OCI 1,555.90 (184.70)

Current Year Previous Year

(iii) Sensitivity analysis of significant assumptions

The following table presents a sensitivity analysis to one of the relevant actuarial 

assumption, holding other assumptions constant, showing how the defined benefit 

obligation would have been affected by changes in the relevant actuarial assumptions that 

were reasonably possible at the reporting date.
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(` in Lakhs)

Discount rate

+ 1.00% discount rate (206.86) (52.40)

- 1.00% discount rate 231.44 83.21 

Premium cost

+ 1.00% premium growth 245.99 121.65 

- 1.00% premium growth (223.14) (72.67)

Current Year Previous Year

(iv)    Experience adjustments

Defined benefit obligation 4,570.55 3,390.12

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities (439.39) (637.33)

Current Year Previous Year

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account 

inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

For officers, from the year 2015-16 a new Post-Retirement Medical Scheme has been 

introduced where a percentage of Basic salary and DA of officers will be contributed to a 

separate fund and the fund arrange to provide medical insurance to retired officers. Group 

has contributed 3% of the basic and DA of officers amounting to ̀ 687.00 Lakhs during 2019-

20 for the scheme. Group has no further liability other than the contribution to the fund. 

Hence the scheme is a defined contribution plan and no actuarial valuation is required. 

(i) Provident Fund Trust of the Group has to declare interest on Provident Fund at a rate 

not less than that declared by the Employees' Provident Fund Organisation. In case the 

Trust is not able to meet the interest liability, Group has to make good the shortfall. This 

is a defined benefit plan and the Group has got the same actuarially valued and there is 

no additional liability that needs to be provided for the year.

2. Officers

c. Interest Rate Guarantee on Provident Fund

Discount rate 6.83% 7.59%

Rate of escalation in salary 4.00% 5.00%

Interest Rate Guarantee on Provident Fund 8.65% 8.55%

Current Year
(Funded)

Previous Year
(Funded)

Actuarial Assumptions
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d. Officers Pension Scheme

e. Gratuity

Based on the guidelines of Ministry of Defence, Group has implemented "BEML Executive 

Superannuation (Pension) Scheme" for Officers of the Group. The Scheme is a defined 

contribution plan and the contribution made is being charged off in the year of contribution. 

Being a defined contribution plan no actuarial valuation is done.

(i) The employees' gratuity fund scheme managed by a Trust is a defined benefit plan. The 

present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the 

Projected Unit Credit Method. 

(ii) The results of the actuarial study for the obligation for employee benefits as computed 

by the actuary are shown below:
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Principal actuarial assumptions 

Discount rate 6.83% 7.59%

Range of compensation increase 4.00% 5.00%

Attrition rate 0.49% 0.55%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.29% 7.59%

Components of income statement charge

Current Service Cost 1,125.70 698.20 

Interest Cost (30.52) 428.97 

Recognition of past service cost -   -   

Settlement / curtailment / termination loss -   -   

Total income statement charge 1,095.18 1,127.17

Movements in net liability/(asset)  

Net liability / (asset) at the beginning of the year 4,088.23 11,232.96

Employer contributions (3,925.56) (11,075.66)

Total expense recognised in profit or loss 1,095.18 1,135.67 

Total amount recognised in OCI 3,342.09 2,795.26 

Net liability / (asset) at the end of the year 4,599.94 4,088.23

Reconciliation of benefit obligations

Obligation at start of the year 44,838.42 45,117.82

Current service cost 1,125.70 698.20 

Interest cost 2,719.89 3,157.45 

Benefits paid directly by the company (9,886.68) (6,897.83)

Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligations 3,326.56 2,762.78 

DBO at the end of the year 42,123.89 44,838.42 

Re-measurements

Actuarial gain/(loss) due to changes in financial assumptions (15.53) 6.80 

Actuarial gain/(loss) on account of experience adjustments (3,326.56) (2,741.42)

Total actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in OCI (3,342.09) (2,734.62)

Change in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 40,694.54 33,884.86 

Adjustment to opening fair value of plan assets -   -   

Interest on plan assets 2,750.41 2,728.48

Contributions made 3,925.56 11,075.66

Benefits paid (9,886.68) (6,981.14)

Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets (15.53) (13.32)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 37,468.30 40,694.54 

Current Year Previous YearActuarial study analysis 

(` in Lakhs)
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(iii) Sensitivity analysis of significant assumptions

The following table presents a sensitivity analysis to one of the relevant actuarial 

assumption, holding other assumptions constant, showing how the defined benefit 

obligation would have been affected by changes in the relevant actuarial assumptions that 

were reasonably possible at the reporting date.

Discount rate

Discount rate (CY +100 basis pts; PY +50 basis pts) (1,921.21) (1,981.66)

Discount rate (CY -100 basis pts; PY -50 basis pts) 2,154.90 2,215.26 

Salary increase

Salary growth (CY +100 basis pts; PY +50 basis pts) 1,787.14 1,828.04 

Salary growth (CY -100 basis pts; PY -50 basis pts) (1,659.21) (1,725.85)

Current Year Previous Year

(` in Lakhs)

Defined benefit obligation 42,123.89 44,838.42 

Fair value of plan assets 37,468.30 40,694.54

(Surplus)/deficit in plan assets 4,655.59 4,143.88

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities 3,326.56 2,741.42 

Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets (30.52) 428.97 

Current Year Previous Year

(` in Lakhs)(iv) Experience adjustments

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account 

inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

The plan assets under the fund are deposited under approved securities as follows:

(v) Investment details

Investment with LIC % 100 100

Others % 0 0

Current Year Previous Year



Note 36: Finance costs (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Interest expense

On Cash Credit & Short term loans 932.24 3,196.59 

On Long Term Loans -   -   

On External Commercial Borrowings -   -   

On Non-convertible Debentures 2,772.00 2,705.22 

On Inter Corporate Loans -   -  

On MSE vendors 2.51 0.74 

Unwinding of discount on Interest free loan 42.73 42.73 

Interest on ROU asset 82.00 -   

Others 242.06 15.23 

Total 4,073.54 5,960.51 

For the Year ended 
31st March 2020

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019

Ind AS 23 (Borrowing Costs) 

The amount of interest capitalized during the Year is ̀ NIL Lakhs (Previous Year - ̀ 66.78 Lakhs).
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Note 37: Other expenses (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Consumption of stores and spare parts 536.62 566.10 

Consumable Tools 613.34 640.41 

Power and fuel 3,710.55 3,820.35 

Rent 171.58 413.96 

Hire Charges 970.44 981.59 

Repairs & Maintenance

    Machinery & Equipment 410.08 471.97 

    Buildings 550.02 591.55 

    Others 1,043.88 906.81

Stationery 108.96 108.42

Insurance 522.95 477.15 

Rates & Taxes 881.81 512.70 

Bank guarantee fee and other charges 647.09 746.63

Communication expenses 338.62 331.91

Commission on sales 12.47 18.41

Remuneration to Auditors (refer note 'a' below) 28.33 26.40 

Legal & Professional Charges 1,364.95 189.50

Travelling Expenses 1,368.89 1,437.14

Publicity & Public Relations 623.55 508.67 

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.05 0.77 

Provision for Obsolescence 909.72 817.90 

Provision for Onerous contract 120.18 1,123.57 

Bad Debts written off -   -   

Defects & Spoilages 274.20 16.82 

Works Contract Expenses 7,241.43 7,022.23

Expenses on Maintenance Contract 3,132.73 4,345.78 

Sundry Direct Charges 3,937.98 2,116.00 

Freight charges 3,160.17 3,055.91

Expenditure on CSR Activities 432.18 310.19 

Provision for doubtful trade receivables & advances 4,620.76 2,225.13

Provision for diminution in value of Current Investment -   -   

Provision for diminution in value of Non-current Investment -   -   

Warranty & Unexpired Obligations 4,680.54 4,952.38 

Less: Transfers (3,074.75) (3,136.51)

Warranty & Unexpired Obligations 1,605.79 1,815.87 

Liquidated damages on sales 25.65 588.68 

Foreign exchange loss / (gain) -   328.90 

Miscellaneous expenses 10,970.70 9,863.79 

Total 50,335.65 46,381.21 

For the Year ended 
31st March 2020

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019
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a. Break up of Remuneration to Auditors : (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

(a)     As Auditor 15.96 15.47

(b)     for taxation matter 2.97 3.17

(C)    Other Services - Certification Fees 7.72 6.82

(d)     Reimbursement of Expenses 1.68 0.94

Total 28.33 26.40

For the Year ended 
31st March 2020

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019

Note 38: Exceptional Items (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Income

MSE Interest written back -   -   

Warranty provision written back -   -   

Liability written back -   -   

sub-total -   -   

Expenditure -   -   

sub-total -   -   

Net Income / (Expenditure) -   -   

For the Year ended 
31st March 2020

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019

Net Profit / (Loss) after Tax (` in Lakhs) 6,368.47 6,316.17 

Average Number of Shares 41,644,500 41,644,500

Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted) – 15.29 15.17 

Face Value `10/- Per Share  (Amount in `)

Current Year Previous Year

Note 39: Other Disclosures

A. Basic / Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share

B. In terms of Notification No. S.O.802(E) dated 23-02-2018 of the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs, the Board at its meeting held on 27.05.2016 has given consent with regard to non-

disclosure of information as required under paragraphs 5(ii) (a) (1), 5(ii) (a) (2), 5(iii) and 

Para 5(viii) (a), (b), (c) and (e) of Part II to Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013, in the 

Annual accounts for the Financial Year 2015-16 onwards. 

Particulars
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C. Ind AS 24 - Related Parties

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24, following are details of the transactions 

during the year with related parties.

Name of the related party

Vignyan Industries Limited Subsidiary

MAMC Industries Limited Subsidiary

BEML Midwest Limited Joint venture

BEML PF Trust Employee benefit and administration trust fund

BEML Gratuity Trust Employee benefit and administration trust fund

BEML Death-cum-Retirement Benefit Fund Trust Employee benefit and administration trust fund

BEML Executive Superannuation (Pension) Fund Trust Employee benefit and administration trust fund

BEML Executive Superannuation (Benefit) Trust Fund Employee benefit and administration trust fund

Dr. D.K. Hota Key managerial personnel

Shri. B R Viswanatha Key managerial personnel

Shri. R H Muralidhara Key managerial personnel

Shri. Suraj Prakash Key managerial personnel

Shri. Suresh Vastrad Key managerial personnel

Shri. M. V.  Rajasekhar Key managerial personnel

Shri. Panneer Selvam R Key managerial personnel

Shri.  S V Ravi Sekhar Rao Key managerial personnel

Nature of relationship

Transactions with related parties

1. The details of related party transactions entered into by the Company are as 

follows:

Name of the Joint Venture Company – M/s. BEML Midwest Limited, Hyderabad. 

Shareholding 45%.

Details of Transactions (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Transactions during the year ended

Sales -   -   

Purchases -   -   

Equity Investment held as on 31st March (at cost) 542.25 542.25

Outstanding balances 

Advances recoverable as on 135.51 135.48 

Amount payable towards supplies as on 230.00 230.00 

Corporate Guarantee given to Bankers [refer Note 7 (b)] 1,912.50 1,912.50 

31st March 
2020

31st March 
2019
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2. Remuneration to Key managerial personnel (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Dr. D.K. Hota - Chairman and Managing Director 68.67 47.10 

Shri. B R Viswanatha - Director (Mining & Construction)* 25.09 39.99 

Shri. R H Muralidhara - Director (Defence) 64.15 38.92 

Shri. Suraj Prakash - Director (Finance) 44.84 32.04 

Shri. Suresh Vastrad - Director (Rail & Metro) 47.12 12.19 

Shri. M. V.  Rajasekhar - Director (Mining & Construction)* 43.51 -   

Shri. Panneer Selvam R - Director (HR)*     23.98 -   

Shri. S.V.Ravi Sekhar Rao - Company Secretary 31.47 16.02 

31st March 
2020

31st March 
2019

(* For part of the year.)
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3. Details of remuneration of key managerial personnel comprises the following: (` in Lakhs)

Dr. D.K. Hota - Chairman and Managing Director 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Short-term benefits 61.88 40.76 

Post-employment benefits 3.85 1.66 

Other long-term benefits 2.94 4.68 

Termination benefits -   -   

Shri. B R Viswanatha - Director (Mining & Construction)* 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Short-term benefits 14.14 33.33 

Post-employment benefits 0.53 1.32 

Other long-term benefits 10.42 5.34 

Termination benefits -   -   

Shri. R H Muralidhara - Director (Defence) 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Short-term benefits 58.34 34.54 

Post-employment benefits 3.27 1.46 

Other long-term benefits 2.53 2.92 

Termination benefits -   -   

Shri. Suraj Prakash - Director (Finance) 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Short-term benefits 29.16 29.16 

Post-employment benefits 1.25 1.25 

Other long-term benefits 1.63 1.63 

Termination benefits -   -   

Shri. Suresh Vastrad - Director (Rail & Metro) 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Short-term benefits 11.16 11.16 

Post-employment benefits 0.38 0.38 

Other long-term benefits 0.65 0.65 

Termination benefits -   -   

Shri. M.V. Rajasekhar - Director (Mining & Construction)* 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Short-term benefits 38.74 -   

Post-employment benefits 2.66 -   

Other long-term benefits 2.11 -   

Termination benefits -   -   

Shri. Panneer Selvam R - Director (HR)*     31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Short-term benefits 20.16 -   

Post-employment benefits 1.71 -   

Other long-term benefits 2.11 -   

Termination benefits -   -   

Shri. S.V.Ravi Sekhar Rao - Company Secretary 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Short-term benefits 28.34 13.94 

Post-employment benefits 1.77 0.86 

Other long-term benefits 1.36 1.22 

Termination benefits -   -   

Total 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Short-term benefits 303.33 162.89 

Post-employment benefits 19.46 6.93 

Other long-term benefits 26.03 16.44 

Termination benefits - -

(* For part of the year.)
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4. Considering the wide scope of the 

definition of Related Party under section 

2(76); Relative under section 2(77) and 

Key Managerial Personnel under section 

2(51) of Companies Act, 2013 and the 

requirement under Ind AS 24 and SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the 

disclosure with respect to Related Party 

transactions has been restricted to 

Subsidiary / Joint Venture / Associate 

companies and to any other Related 

Party as declared by Directors and Key 

Managerial Personnel. Accordingly, the 

compl iance with Related Party 

Transactions under section 188, Ind AS 

24 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 has been made to the extent data is 

available with the Company.

a. Claims against the Group not 

acknowledged as debts 

i Disputed statutory demands (Customs 

Duty, Central Excise, Service Tax, Sales 

Tax/VAT etc.,) - `44761.43 lakhs 

(Previous Year ̀ 46384.23 Lakhs)

ii  Other claims- legal cases etc. ̀ 18901.86  

Lakhs (Previous Year ̀ 17262.44 Lakhs)

b. Guarantees

Corporate Guarantee issued to bankers 

D. Contingent liabilities & 

Commitments 

 I. Contingent liabilities

on behalf of M/s. BEML Midwest Ltd 

(Joint Venture company) `1912.50 

Lakhs (Previous Year - ̀ 1912.50 Lakhs). 

The matter is subjudice.

c. Other money for which the company is 

contingently liable - ̀ Nil (Previous Year - 

`Nil).

a. Estimated amount of contracts 

remaining to be executed on capital 

account and not provided for `660.74 

Lakhs (Previous Year - ̀ 1526.82 Lakhs)

b. Uncalled liability on shares and other 

investments partly paid - `Nil (Previous 

Year - ̀ Nil ).

c. Other commitments (specify nature) - 

`Nil (Previous Year - ̀ Nil ).

NOTES

1. The Group does not expect any cash 

outflow in respect of above contingent 

Liabilities.

2. It is not practicable to estimate the 

timing of cash flows, if any, in respect of 

matters referred in I (a) above pending 

resolutions of the arbitration / appellate 

proceedings.

3. The cash flow in respect of matters 

referred to in I (b) above is generally 

expected to occur within 3 years. 

However, the matter is under 

adjudication before DRT.

II. Commitments

E. Aggregate amount of Research & Development Expenses: (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Revenue Expenditure* 9,438.21 6,424.71 

Capital Expenditure** 915.61 647.36 

31st March 
2020

31st March 
2019

* The aggregate amount of Research & Development expenditure recognised as expenses 

during the period is as below:

216 



BEML LIMITED
56 TH ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

a. Research & Development Revenue Expenditure:

Particulars

Material Cost 114.34 295.52

Employee Remuneration 5,320.24 4,117.84

Depreciation 1,055.81 1,122.93 

Power and Fuel 89.69 48.17 

Repairs and Maintenance 35.77 13.20 

Consumable Tools 0.86 0.48 

Travelling 115.86 126.54 

Other Expenses 3,079.30 1,400.86

Payment to Technology Providers -   -   

Prototype held in WIP 219.84 422.10

Prototype held in FGI -   -   

Cost of Sales of Prototype sold 462.31 -   

Total R&D Revenue Expenditure 10,494.02 7,547.64 

Less: Depreciation 1,055.81 1,122.93 

Net R & D Expenditure 9,438.21 6,424.71 

For the Year ended 
31st March 2020

For the Year ended 
31st March 2019

 Sale value of prototype sold - included in net Sales 400.06

(` in Lakhs)
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For the 

Year
As at

01.04.2019

Additions

during the 

year

Deduction / Re-

classification & 

Adjustments

during
the year

As at

31.03.2020

As at

01.04.2019

Deduction / Re-

classification & 

Adjustments

during the year

As at

31.03.2020

As at

31.03.2020

As at

31.03.2019

Particulars

Gross carrying value Accumulated depreciation and impairment Net Carrying value

Property, Plant
and Equipment

Land

Free Hold 3.29 - - 3.29 - - - - 3.29 3.29

Lease Hold - - - - - - - - - -

Buildings 109.33 - - 109.33 49.94 2.16 12.78 64.88 44.45 59.39

Plant and Equipment 1,117.01 440.30 - 1,557.31 381.61 125.70 (12.34) 494.97 1,062.34 735.40

Furniture & Fixtures 112.85 2.07 (2.21) 112.71 58.05 10.93 (1.58) 67.40 45.31 54.80

Vehicles

Given on Lease 93.54 26.86 (9.88) 110.52 54.89 13.86 (9.94) 58.81 51.71 38.65

Own Use - - - - - - - -

Office Equipment - - - - - - - -

Roads & Drains 1.64 - 1.64 1.07 0.57 - 1.64 - 0.57

Water Supply
Installations

0.12 - 0.12 0.02 0.01 - 0.03 0.09 0.10

Electrical Installation 104.50 34.93 - 139.43 32.52 13.00 (0.01) 45.51 93.92 71.98

Computers and Data
processing units

758.13 24.53 23.52 806.18 529.17 64.82 27.28 621.27 184.91 228.96

Intangible Assets

Software 1,954.36 386.92 - 2,341.28 969.41 357.37 26.51 1,353.29 987.99 984.95

Technical Knowhow 5,755.91 - - 5,755.91 2,343.61 467.39 (7.26) 2,803.74 2,952.17 3,412.30

Total 10,010.68 915.61 11.43 10,937.72 4,420.29 1,055.81 35.44 5,511.54 5,426.18 5,590.39

Previous Year 9,282.57 647.36 80.75 10,010.68 3,236.85 1,122.93 60.51 4,420.29 5,590.39 6,045.72

b. Research & Development Capital Expenditure

F.  Ind AS 108 (Operating Segments) 

Vide Notification No.  S.O.802(E) dated 23-02-2018 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, exempted 

companies engaged in Defence Production from segmental disclosure as required under Ind AS 108 

(Operating Segments), accordingly the disclosure requirements under Ind AS 108 has not been made.

G. Advances, Balances with government departments, Trade Payables and receivables, Other loans and 

advances and deposits  classified under non current and current are subject to confirmation and 

reconciliation. There are certain old balances pending review / adjustment. The management does not 

expect any significant impact upon such reconciliation.

H. Figures of previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified/ recast wherever necessary to conform to 

current year’s presentation.

I. Disclosures as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015.

In compliance of Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), the 

required information is given as under:

** The aggregate amount of Research & Development Expenditure recognised as Capital Expenditure till 

31st March 2020 is as below : 

(` in Lakhs)
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i. Loans and Advances in the nature of loans:

A. To Subsidiary Companies

B. To Associates / Joint Venture

C. To Firms / Companies in which directors are interested

D. Where there is no repayment schedule or repayment

beyond seven year or no interest or interest below section

186 of Companies Act, 2013

ii. Investment by the loanee (as detailed above) 
    in the shares of BEML and its subsidiaries

Particulars

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Amount as on 

31 March
2020

31 March
2019

31 March
2020

31 March
2019

Maximum amount 

outstanding during the 
year ended

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(` in Lakhs)
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J. Ind AS 116 - Leases

a) The Group as a lessee

The Group's significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases and in 

respect of its leased office premises. These lease arrangements, run for a period of 3 Years to 

10 Years and are generally renewable by mutual consent.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are summarised 

below:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Not later than one year 0.28 58.13 

Later than one year but not later than five years 1.12 244.34 

Later than five years -   1,551.90 

Total operating lease commitments 1.40 1,854.37 

31st March 
2020

31st March 
2019

b) The Group as a lessor

The Group provides cars to employees who are eligible and enrol into such a scheme after 

completion of a specific period of service. Such leases are non-cancellable in nature and have 

been classified as operating leases.

Below are the details of carrying amounts of such vehicles recorded as property, plant and 

equipment:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Carrying value of assets 532.27 466.75 

Accumulated depreciation 154.58 110.59 

Depreciation expense during the year 74.07 59.45 

31st March 
2020

31st March 
2019

Future minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of leased cars 

are summarised below:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Not later than one year 67.54 50.09 

Later than one year but not later than five years 197.22 213.09 

Later than five years 127.45 63.28 

Total operating lease commitments 392.21 326.46 

31st March 
2020

31st March 
2019
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c) Lease income and expenditure

The gross amounts of operating lease income and expenditure recognised in profit or loss is 

as below.

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Lease income 68.50 56.07 

Lease expenses 171.58 413.96 

31st March 
2020

31st March 
2019

(` in Lakhs)

Total Depreciation of RoU Assets 109.80 -   

Finance Cost of Lease Liability 82.00 -   

Gross value of RoU Assets 984.39 -   

Net Book Value of Rou Assets 874.59 -   

Lease Liability as of 31st March 915.47 -   

Impact on Profitability in the current year (41.27) -   

31st March 
2020

31st March 
2019

d)    Impact of IND AS 116 - RoU Assets
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K. Fair values and measurement principles

a) The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by category are as follows:

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Financial assets measured at fair value:

Forward exchange contracts -   -   -   -   

-   -   - -

Financial assets not measured at fair value:

Loans -   9.96 -   826.34 

Trade receivables -   151,037.35 -   161,396.29 

Cash and cash equivalents -   2,734.32 -   2,237.07

Other financial assets -   663.29 -   695.04 

-   154,444.92 -   165,154.74 

Financial liabilities measured at fair value:

Forward exchange contract -   -   -   -   

-   -   -   - 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value:

Borrowings -   23,960.51 -   40,213.95

Trade payables -   66,474.46 -   76,697.48

Other financial liabilities -   12,441.09 -   3,923.66 

-   102,876.06 -   120,835.09 

31st March 2020
Carrying amounts

31st March 2019
Carrying amounts

Fair 
value 

through 
profit or 

loss

Other 
Financial 
Assets - 

Amortised 
Cost

Fair 
value 

through 
profit or 

loss

Other 
Financial 
Assets - 

Amortised 
Cost

* The Group has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments, because their carrying 

amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

b) The following table shows the fair values of assets and liabilities including their levels in the 

fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for assets and liabilities not 

measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. The 

Group's use of quoted market prices (Level 1), valuation model using observable market 

information as inputs (Level 2) and valuation models without observable market information 

as inputs (Level 3) in the valuation of securities and contracts by type of issuer was as 

follows:
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(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Financial assets measured at fair value:

Forward exchange contracts -   -   -   -   -   -   

-   -   -   -   -   -

Financial liabilities measured at fair value:

Forward exchange contracts -   -   -   -   -   -   

-   -   -   -   -   -   

31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Level 1 Level 1Level 2 Level 2Level 3 Level 3

c) Measurement of fair values

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs:

Particulars

Forward exchange contracts The fair values is determined using unquoted Not applicable
forward exchange rates at the reporting date.

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs

d) Transfers between the fair value hierarchy

There were no transfers in either direction in the fair value hierarchy during the year 

2019-20.

L. Financial risk management

The Group is broadly exposed to credit 

risk, liquidity risk and market risk as a 

result of financial instruments. 

The Group's Board of Directors has the 

ove ra l l  r e spons ib i l i t y  f o r  the  

establ ishment,  monitor ing and 

supervision of the Group's risk 

management framework. Treasury 

Management Team in the Group take 

appropriate steps to mitigate financial 

risks within the framework set by the top 

management. Derivative transactions 

are undertaken by a specialist team with 

appropriate skills and experience. Group 

do not trade in derivatives for 

speculation.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a 

counterparty will default on its 

contractual obligations resulting in 

financial loss to the Group. Credit risk 

arises from credit exposures from 

customers, cash and cash equivalents 

held with banks and current and non-

current debt investments.

The Group regularly follow up the 

receivable to minimise losses arising 

from credit exposure from credit 

customers. Credit control assesses the 

credit quality of the customers, their 

financial position, past experience in 

payments and other relevant factors. 

Deposits and cash balances are placed 

with reputable scheduled banks.

The carrying amount of financial assets 
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(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

India 149,972.28 160,009.39 

Other regions 1,065.07 1,386.90 

Total trade receivables 151,037.35 161,396.29 

31st March 
2020

31st March 
2019

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's most 

significant customer, accounted for ̀ 12345.19 

Lakhs of the trade receivables carrying amount 

(Previous Year - ̀ 21355.43 Lakhs).

The movement in the loss allowance for 

impairment of trade receivables are disclosed 

in Note No. 14

Any past due from Government Customers and 

those fully covered by guarantees or 

collaterals received are not tested for 

impairment.

The credit quality of the financial assets is 

satisfactory, taking into account the allowance 

for doubtful trade receivables.

The Group has not received any collaterals for 

receivables as at reporting date.

represents the Group's maximum 

exposure to credit risk. No other financial 

assets carry a significant exposure to 

credit risk. 

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is 

influenced mainly by the individual 

characteristics of each customer. 

However, the management also 

considers the factors that may influence 

the credit risk of its customer base. Major 

Customers of the Group are from 

Government Sector and Public Sector 

Companies, where credit risk is relatively 

low.

The management has established a 

system under which each new customer 

i s  a n a l y s e d  i n d i v i d u a l l y  f o r  

creditworthiness before the Group's 

standard payment and delivery terms 

and conditions are offered. The Group's 

review includes external ratings, if they 

are available, and in some cases bank 

references. 

The Group establishes an allowance for 

impairment that represents its estimate 

of expected losses in respect of trade 

receivables based on factual information 

as on the Balance sheet date.

The impairment loss allowance at 31 March 

2020 related to several customers that have 

indication that they may not pay their 

outstanding balances. The Group believes that 

the unimpaired amounts that are past due by 

more than 180 days are still collectible in full, 

based on the fact that major customers are 

Government department, PSUs and historical 

payment behaviour and extensive analysis of 

customer credit risk, including underlying 

customers' credit ratings if they are available.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group 

will encounter difficulty in meeting the 

obligations associated with its financial 

liabilities that are settled by delivering 

cash or another financial asset, or the 

risk that the Group will face difficulty in 

(ii) Liquidity risk
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raising financial resources required to 

fulfil its commitments. The Group's 

approach to managing liquidity is to 

ensure, as far as possible, that it will 

have sufficient liquidity to meet its 

liabilities when they are due, under both 

normal and stressed conditions, without 

incurring unacceptable losses or risking 

damage to the Group's reputation.

Liquidity risk is maintained at low levels 

t h r o u g h  e f f e c t i v e  c a s h  f l o w  

management, low borrowings and 

availability of adequate cash. Cash flow 

forecasting is performed internally by 

forecasts of the Group's liquidity 

requirements to ensure that it has 

sufficient cash to meet operational 

needs, to fund scheduled investments 

and to comply with loan covenants.

To ensure continuity of funding, the 

Group primarily uses short-term bank 

facilities in the nature of bank overdraft 

facility, cash credit facility and short-

term borrowings to fund its ongoing 

working capital requirements needs. The 

Group has also availed various non-

current facilities in the form of secured 

redeemable debentures, secured term 

loans, inter-corporate loans against the 

Group's guarantee and soft loans from 

the Government for expansion projects 

and construction and development of 

capital assets.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The table below details the Group's 

remaining contractual maturity for its 

financial liabilities and derivative 

financial liabilities. The contractual cash 

flows reflect the undiscounted cash flows 

of financial liabilities and derivative 

financial liabilities based on the earliest 

date on which the Group can be required 

to pay.

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

31 March 2020

Non-derivative financial 
liabilities

Non-current Borrowings -   20,149.48 -   -   20,149.48

Current Borrowings 3,811.03 -   -   -   3,811.03

Trade payables 66,474.46 -   -   -   66,474.46

Other financial liabilities 12,441.09 -   -   -   12,441.09

Derivative financial 
instruments

Forward exchange contracts

- Outflow -   -   -   -   -   

- Inflow -   -   -   -   -   

82,726.58 20,149.48 -   -  102,876.06 

Contractual cash flows

1 year or 
less

1 year to 5
years

5 year or 
more

Adjust-
ments

Carrying 
amount

225



(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

31 March 2019

Non-derivative financial 
liabilities

Non-current Borrowings -   30,296.68 -   -   30,296.68

Current Borrowings 9,917.27 -   -   -   9,917.27

Trade payables 76,697.48 -   -   -   76,697.48

Other financial liabilities 3,923.66 -   -   -   3,923.66

Derivative financial 
instruments

Forward exchange contracts

- Outflow -   -   -   -   -   

- Inflow -   -   -   -   -  

90,538.41 30,296.68 -   - 120,835.09

Contractual cash flows

1 year or 
less

1 year to 5
years

5 year or 
more

Adjust-
ments

Carrying 
amount

(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in 

market prices – such as foreign 

exchange rates, interest rates and equity 

/ commodity prices – will affect the 

Group's income or the value of its 

holdings of financial instruments. The 

objective of market risk management is 

to manage and control market risk 

e x p o s u r e s  w i t h i n  a c c e p t a b l e  

parameters, while optimising the return. 

The Group uses derivatives to manage 

market risks. All such transactions are 

carried out within the guidelines set by 

the management.

The Group's activities expose it primarily 

to the financial risks of changes in foreign 

exchange rates and interest rate 

movements (refer to notes below on 

currency risk and interest risk). The 

Group enters into forward derivative 

contracts to manage risks of loss arising 

due to foreign exchange exposure. 

During the year ended 31 March 2020, 

there was no change to the manner in 

which the Group managed or measured 

market risk.

Foreign currency risk is the risk arising 

from exposure to foreign currency 

movement that will impact the Group's 

future cash flows and profitability in the 

ordinary course of business. The Group's 

exposure to the risk of changes in foreign 

exchange rates relates primarily to its 

operating activities from procuring or 

selling in foreign currencies and 

obtaining finance in foreign currencies.

The Group is exposed to currency risk on 

account of its borrowings and other 

payables in foreign currency. The 

functional currency of the Group is 

(iv) Currency risk
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Indian Rupee. The Group uses forward 

exchange contracts to hedge its currency 

risk, mostly with a maturity of less than 

one year from the reporting date.

The Group does not use derivative 

financial instruments for trading or 

speculative purposes. Following is the 

information on derivative financial 

instruments to hedge the foreign 

exchange rate risk as on date are as 

below:

(` in Lakhs)

Category

Hedges of recognized 
(liabilities) / assets  NIL NIL NIL NIL

Hedges of highly probable 
forecast transactions NIL NIL NIL NIL

Instrument Currency
Cross 

Currency
Amounts

Buy / 
Sell

31 March 2020

Forward
contract

(` in Lakhs)

Category

Hedges of recognized 
(liabilities) / assets  NIL NIL NIL NIL

Hedges of highly probable 
forecast transactions NIL NIL NIL NIL

Instrument Currency
Cross 

Currency
Amounts

Buy / 
Sell

31 March 2019

Forward
contract
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(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

31 March 2020

Financial 
assets (A)

Cash 
and cash 
equivalents 183.24 -   1,773.13 777.95 -   -   -   -   -   

Trade 
receivables 149,972.28 851.75 213.32 -   -   -   -   -  -

Financial 
liabilities  (B)

Trade payables 52,352.22 6,403.30 3,520.60 3,447.62 11.53 663.18 46.97 28.02 1.02 

Other current 
financial 
liabilities 12,399.49 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   

Net 
exposure 
to currency 
risk (A-B) 85,403.81 (5,551.55) (1,534.15) (2,669.67) (11.53) (663.18) (46.97) (28.02) (1.02)

31 March 2019

Financial 
assets (A)

Cash 
and cash 
equivalents 183.43 -   1,275.69 777.95 -   -   -   -   -   

Trade 
receivables 160,009.39 1,173.58 213.32 -   -   -   -   -   -

Financial 
liabilities  
(B)

Trade 
payables 57,095.49 13,634.88 2,206.53 3,064.18 -   647.72 2.31 28.02 18.35 

Other 
current 
financial 
liabilities 3,880.15 -   -   -   -   1.91 -   -   -   

Net 
exposure 
to currency 
risk (A-B) 99,217.18 (12,461.30) (717.52) (2,286.23) -   (649.63) (2.31) (28.02) (18.35)

Exposure to currency risk

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as on dates are as below:

INR USD EURO JPY SEK GBP SGD CHF ZAR

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

USD -   -   76.0600 69.7700

EUR -   -   84.4300 78.8400

JPY -   -   0.7069 0.6343

GBP -   -   94.4700 91.7500 

BRL -   18.4964 -   17.7325 

Average rate Year-end spot rate

31 March 
2020

The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the year.

31 March 
2019

31 March 
2020

31 March 
2019

228



BEML LIMITED
56 TH ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening / (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against US dollars, Euro, 

Japanese Yen, the Pound and other currencies at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 would have affected 

the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and 

profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular 

interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Particulars

31 March 2020

1% movement 

USD 55.52 (55.52) 36.12 (36.12)

EUR 15.34 (15.34) 9.98 (9.98)

JPY 26.70 (26.70) 17.37 (17.37)

SEK 0.12 (0.12) 0.08 (0.08)

GBP 6.63 (6.63) 4.31 (4.31)

SGD 0.47 (0.47) 0.31 (0.31)

CHF 0.28 (0.28) 0.18 (0.18)

ZAR 0.01 (0.01) 0.01 (0.01)

31 March 2019

1% movement

USD 124.61 (124.61) 81.07 (81.07)

EUR 7.18 (7.18) 4.67 (4.67)

JPY 22.86 (22.86) 14.87 (14.87)

SEK -   -   -   -   

GBP 6.50 (6.50) 4.23 (4.23)

SGD 0.02 (0.02) 0.02 (0.02)

CHF 0.28 (0.28) 0.18 (0.18)

ZAR 0.18 (0.18) 0.12 (0.12)

Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

Strengthe
-ning

Weakening

(` in Lakhs)

Strengthe
-ning

Weakening

(v) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value 

interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because 

of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows 

of floating interest bearing instruments will fluctuate because of fluctuations in market interest 

rates. 

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from borrowings and loans made. Borrowings availed at fixed 

rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The interest rate profile of the Group's 

interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Group is as follows.
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(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets -   -   

Financial liabilities (30,000.00) (30,000.00)

(30,000.00) (30,000.00)

Variable-rate instruments

Financial assets -   817.28 

Financial liabilities -   -   
-   817.28 

Carrying amount 

31st March 201931st March 2020

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate 

instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed-rate 

financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss, and the Group does not 

designate derivatives as hedging instruments 

under a fair value hedge accounting model. 

Therefore, a change in interest rates at the 

reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-

rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points 

in interest rates at the reporting date would have 

increased / (decreased) equity and profit or loss 

by the amounts shown below. This analysis 

assumes that all other variables, in particular 

foreign currency exchange rates, remain 

constant.

(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

31 March 2020

Financial assets -   -   -   - 

Financial liabilities -   -   -   -   

Total Variable-rate instruments -   -   -   -   

Cash flow sensitivity (net) -   -   -   -   

31 March 2019

Financial assets 70.76 (70.76) 46.04 (46.04)

Financial liabilities -   -   -   -   

Total Variable-rate instruments 70.76 (70.76) 46.04 (46.04)

Cash flow sensitivity (net) 70.76 (70.76) 46.04 (46.04)

Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

100 bp 
increase 

100 bp 
decrease

100 bp 
increase 

100 bp 
decrease
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(vi) Equity and commodity price risk

Price risk is the risk of fluctuations in the value of assets and liabilities as a result of changes in 

market prices of investments. The Group has no exposure to changes in the quoted equity 

securities price risk as it has investments in unquoted equity instruments only. The Group does 

not invest in commodities and is not exposed to commodity price risk.

M. Capital Management

The Group strives is to maintain a strong 

capital base so as to maintain investor, 

creditor and market confidence and to 

sustain future development of the 

business. Management monitors the 

return on capital as well as the level of 

dividends to ordinary shareholders. The 

board of directors seeks to maintain a 

balance between the higher returns and 

levels of borrowings and the advantages 

and security afforded by a sound capital 

position.

The Group’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows. (` in Lakhs)

Particulars

1Total borrowings 34,109.99 40,362.29 

2Less: Cash and bank balances (67.89) (258.04)

Adjusted net debt 34,042.10 40,104.25 

Total equity 225,281.04 218,756.88 

Less: Other components of equity 7,515.19 7,531.24

Adjusted equity 217,765.85 211,225.64

Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 0.16 0.19

31st March 
2020

31st March 
2019

1 Total borrowings comprises of long-term borrowings, short-term borrowing and bank overdraft 

facilities.

2 Cash and bank balances comprises of cash in hand, cash at bank and term deposits with banks 

excluding consortium member balances in ESCROW account, as disclosed under Note 15 (b) and 

balances with bank as unclaimed dividend.

N. Derivatives

Derivatives not designated as hedging 

instruments

The Group uses foreign currency forward 

contracts to manage its exposure to 

foreign currency fluctuations. These 

forward contracts are used to hedge 

foreign currency payables and other future 

transactions. However, these foreign 

exchange forward contracts are not 

des ignated as  qua l i fy ing hedge 

instruments and are entered into for 

periods consistent with foreign currency 

exposure of the underlying transactions, 

and are generally for a term of 3 months to 

12 months.
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The Group has following outstanding forward contracts as on 

31 March 2020: JPY Nil (INR Nil) [Previous Year - JPY Nil (INR Nil)]

31 March 2020: EUR Nil (INR Nil) [Previous Year - EUR Nil (INR Nil)]

31 March 2020: USD Nil (INR Nil) [Previous Year: USD NIL (INR Nil)]

The fair value of foreign currency forward derivative is as below:
(` in Lakhs)

Particulars

Derivative assets

Foreign exchange forward contracts (JPY) -   -   

Foreign exchange forward contracts (EUR) -   -   

Foreign exchange forward contracts (USD) -   -   

Total -   -   

Derivative liabilities

Foreign exchange forward contracts (JPY) -   -   

Foreign exchange forward contracts (EUR) -   -   

Foreign exchange forward contracts (USD) -   -   

Total -   -   

31st March 2020

INR

31st March 2019

INR

The Group has unhedged foreign currency 

exposure of `16261.27 Lakhs (Previous 

Year - ̀ 20610.15 Lakhs) for payables as at 

reporting date.

The Group has applied the principles of Ind 

AS 109 for the measurement of derivative 

financial instruments and has classified 

such derivative contracts as at fair value 

through profit or loss.

O. On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs ("MCA") has notified the following 

IND AS amendment vide the Companies 

( I nd i an  A c coun t i ng  S t anda rd s )  

Amendment Rules, 2019 . The amendment 

is  applicable from 1st April, 2019.

LEASES

The core principle of the new standard is 

for the recognition, measurement, 

presentation and disclosure of leases. The 

1 IND AS 116

objective is to ensure that lessees and 

lessors provide relevant information in a 

manner that faithfully represents those 

transactions. This information gives a basis 

for users of financial statements to assess 

the effect that leases have on the financial 

position, financial performance and cash 

flows of the entity.

P. The spread of COVID-19 Pandemic and 

subsequent lockdown in the last week of 

March 2020, has impacted the Company's 

turnover and production due to the closure 

of Company's manufacturing facilities, 

disruption in spares & service business, 

non receipt of materials due to global Covid 

impact even before the lockdown in the 

Country on account of supply chain 

disruptions, restrictive movements /non 

availability of required trailers etc, the 

impact of which could not be quantified.

Based on the information available 
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(internal as well as external) upto the  date 

of approval of these financial results, 

Company expects to recover the carrying 

amounts of intangible assets, trade 

receivables, inventory and other financial 

Assets. Efforts are being made to minimize 

the impact and Company will continue to 

closely monitor the developments & future 

economic & business outlook and its 

impact on Company's future financial 

statements.

(` in Lakhs)

Name of Subsidiary 
/ JV company

Subsidiary companies

Vignyan Industries Limited India 96.56% Consolidated

MAMC Industries Limited India 100.00% Consolidated

JV company

BEML Midwest  Limited India 45.00% Not consolidated due to 
non-availability of financial 
statements

Q. The status of consolidation of Subsidiary and JV companies are as under:

Country of 
Incorporation

Proportion 
of 

Ownership 
interest

Status
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(` in Lakhs)

Name of the 
entity in the 

                   1 2 3 4 5

Indian Subsidiaries

Vignyan Industries Limite 0.00% (0.66) -7.32% (466.44)

MAMC Industries Limited -0.07% (146.60) -0.15% (9.59)

Total (147.26) (476.03)

Non-controlling interests

Vignyan Industries Limited 3.75 (16.05)

MAMC Industries Limited -   -   

Joint Venture 

Indian:

BEML Midwest  Limited * -   -   

Net Assets, i.e., total assets 
minus total liabilities

Share in profit or loss

As % of consolidated 
net assets

R. Additional information on Consolidated Financial Statements for F.Y 2019-20

Amount
As % of consolidated 

profit or loss
Amount

* The financial statement of the JV company is not consolidated, as the JV has not prepared its 
    financial statements.
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1 Reporting period of the Subsidiary Company 31.03.2020 31.03.2020

2 Reporting currency of Foreign Subsidiary - -

3 Exchange rate as on 31.03.2020 - -

4 Share Capital (₹ in Lakhs) 278.97 5.00 

5 Reserves & Surplus (₹ in Lakhs) (279.63) (151.60)

6 Total Assets (₹ in Lakhs) 1,184.40 458.13 

7 Total Liabilities (₹ in Lakhs) 1,185.06 604.73 

8 Investments (₹ in Lakhs) Nil Nil

9 Turnover Gross (₹ in Lakhs) 1,467.53 Nil

10 Profit before taxation (₹ in Lakhs) (470.00) (9.59)

11 Provision for taxation (₹ in Lakhs) -   -   

12 Profit after taxation (₹ in Lakhs) (470.00) (9.59)

13 Proposed Dividend ₹Nil ₹Nil

14 % of Shareholding 96.56% 100.00%

Note: MAMC Industries Ltd is yet to commence operation.

Form AOC-I

Part "A" : Subsidiaries

Statement pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating to Subsidiaries

Sl. 
No.

Name of Subsidiary Company
Vignyan Industries 

Limited
MAMC Industries 

Limited
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Part "B" : Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate 
Companies and Joint Ventures

BEML Midwest  Limited

1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

2 Shares of Associate / Joint Ventures held 
by the company on the year end

No.

Amount of Investment in Associates / Joint 
Venture

Extend of Holding %

3 Description of how there is significant 
influence

4 Reason why the associate / joint venture is 
not consolidated

5 Net worth attributable to Shareholding as 
per latest audited Balance Sheet

6 Profit / Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

 

Name of Associate / Joint Ventures

-

5422500

`542.25 Lakhs

45.00%

Investment in the equity to the extent of 45% paid-up 
capital and the Corporate guarantee provided by BEML 
are considered to be significant influence.

There was complete cessation of activities in M/s. BEML 
Midwest Ltd., the JV company since Sept. 2008 and the 
matters relating to the JV company are subjudice. In 
view of the above, the JV company has not prepared its 
accounts and thus the same could not be consolidated.

Not Available

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
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To the members of BEML LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial 

Statements

Qualified Opinion

1. We are issuing this revised Independent 

Auditor's Report on the Consolidated 

Financial Statements of BEML LIMITED 

based on the revision of audit report by the 

statutory auditors of its subsidiary VIGNYAN 

INDUSTRIES LIMITED  [VIL]  on 

14.08.2020.

2. We have audited the accompanying 

consolidated financial statements of BEML 

LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the 

Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries 

(holding company and its subsidiaries 

together referred to as “the Group”), its 

associates and jointly controlled entities 

which comprise consolidated Balance Sheet 

as at March 31, 2020, the consolidated 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income), the consolidated 

Statement of Changes in Equity and the 

consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the 

year then ended, and notes to the 

consolidated financial statements, including 

a summary of significant accounting policies 

and other explanatory information 

(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated 

financial statements”).

3. In our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the 

explanations given to us, except for the 

effects of the matters described under 

the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” 

section of our report, the aforesaid 

consolidated financial statements give the 

information required by the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required 

and give a true and fair view in conformity 

with the India Accounting Standards 

prescribed under section 133 read with the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015 as amended, (“Ind AS”) and 

other accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, of the consolidated state of 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

affairs of the company as at March 31, 2020 

and its consolidated PROFIT, consolidated 

changes in equity and its consolidated cash 

flows for the year ended on that date.  

4. As explained in Note.7, the financial 

statements of BEML Midwest Limited, a joint 

venture  Company, has not been 

consolidated in the absence of its financial 

statements. As per the accounting principles, 

the financial statements of this joint venture 

should have been consolidated using 

proportionate consolidation method. The 

effects on the consolidated financial 

statements, of the failure to consolidate this 

Joint Venture Company, net of provision for 

diminution already made in the value of the 

investment, has not been determined.

5. MoD (Ministry of Defense) vide their letter 
rddated 3  September 2019 has directed BEML 

to initiate and complete the disinvestment 

process by 4 months and in case no strategic 

buyer is found. BEML shall initiate the process 

of closure.  BEML Board in turn initiated 

action for disinvesting VIL.  PIM/EOI was 

uploaded in BEML/MOD, DDP/DIPAM 

websites, including in the website of TA 

(Resurgent India) on 04.09.2019 and also 

published in newspapers on 05.09.2019 for 

inviting suitable buyers for the same.  

However, as per information provided to us, 

no bid was received and as per alternative 

mechanism there exists no option for the 

company but to initiate closure.  Also, the 

company has once again approached MoD for 

its approval for closure.  The directions from 

MoD was awaited on the date of signing the 

original report. 

6. The entire production of VIL is captively 

consumed by BEML and VIL as no or 

insignificant supplies to customers other than 

BEML.  It is not out of the place to mention 

that in absence of contracts from BEML, there 

Basis for Qualified Opinion:

BEML MIDWEST LIMITED:

VIGNYAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED [VIL]



outstanding from railway board for 

which an Inter- Ministerial Committee 

has been formed by MOD to resolve the 

issues and the company does not 

expect material impacts on its 

realization.

d) Note No. 39(G) regarding pending 

confirmation, reconciliation, review/ 

adjustment of balances in respect of 

advances, balances with government 

departments, trade payable, trade 

receivable, other loans and advances 

and deposits.

e) Note No. 39(P) with respect to impact 

of COVID 19 and its consequential 

impact.

f) In the books of MAMC Industries 

Limited, company is holding lease hold 

land taken from Urban Development 

Dept, Govt of West Bengal on 7th March 

2011 and the said land is lying without 

erection of factory and as per the term 

No.25 of said lease deed, the Govt. of 

West Bengal has right to re-enter and 

take back the possession of the said 

land if no factory is erected within two 

years from the date of lease-and also 

have to right to cancel the lease deed. 

Further, the lease rentals remain 

unpaid since the date of lease, see Note 

No.3, Property, Plant and Equipment 

attached to the Balance Sheet, which is 

in non observance of point no 23 of the 

said lease deed. 

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the 

above matters.

9. Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in 

our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the consolidated 

financial statements of the current period.  

These matters were addressed in the context 

of our audit of the consolidated financial 

statements as a whole, and in forming our 

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 

separate opinion on these matters. We have 

determined the matters described below to 

be the key audit matters to be communicated 

in our report:

Key Audit Matters:

arises significant doubts on the future cash 

flow of the company and consequently its 

ability to continue as a going concern.  The 

financial statements do not adequately 

disclosed this fact.   

7. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Standards on Auditing [SAs] specified 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 

2013.  Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of 

consolidated financial statements section of 

our report.  We are independent of the Group 

in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India together with the ethical requirements 

that are relevant to our audit of financial 

statements under the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

these requirements and the Code of Ethics.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion.

8. We draw our attention to: 

a) Note No.11 (a) in respect of the 

amount advanced to MAMC consortium 

for Rs.6053.89 lakhs, realization/ 

settlement of which depends on 

approval from Ministry of Defence and 

viable business plan.

b) Note No.14 Note No.14 in respect of 

Trade receivable from MOD Rs. 

4,929.12 lakhs towards exchange rate 

difference and escalation for import of 

components in respect of a long term 

contract for Design, Development and 

Supply, entered into with MOD in 2001.  

The company has  received the 

requisite amendment  to  the  contract  

in this regard from  MOD towards 

acceptance of  BEML's claim on account 

of exchange rate variation in Euro and 

the realization of these receivables 

depends on the final determination of 

the amount payable by MOD.

c) Refer Note 18 (ii) for Claims 

Emphasis of Matter:
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Sl.No Key Audit Matters Auditor's Response 

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, 

presentation and disclosures of 

revenues and other related balances in 

view of adoption of Ind AS 115 

“Revenue from Contracts with 

Customers” (new revenue accounting 

standard):

The application of the new revenue 

accounting standard involves certain key 

judgements relating to identification of 

d i s t inc t  per formance ob l igat ions ,  

determination of transaction price of the 

identified performance obligations, the 

appropriateness of the basis used to 

measure revenue recognised over a period. 

Additionally, new revenue accounting 

standard contains disclosures which involves 

collation of information in respect of 

disaggregated revenue and periods over 

which the remaining performance 

obligations will be satisfied subsequent to 

the balance sheet date.

Refer Note No.30 to the Consolidated 

Financial Statements

Principal Audit Procedures

We assessed the Company's process to identify the 

impact of adoption of the new revenue accounting 

standard. Our audit approach consisted testing of 

the design and operating effectiveness of the 

internal controls and substantive testing as follows:

o Evaluated the design of internal controls 

relating to implementation of the new 

revenue accounting standard.  

o Selected a sample of continuing and new 

contracts, and tested the operating 

effectiveness of the internal control, relating 

to identification of the distinct performance 

obligations and determination of transaction 

price.  We carried out a combination of 

procedures involving enquiry and 

observation, reperformance and inspection 

of evidence in respect of operation of these 

controls.  

o Selected a sample of continuing and new 

contracts and performed the following 

procedures:

§ Read, analysed and identified the 

distinct performance obligations in 

these contracts.  

§ Compared these performance 

obligations with that identified and 

recorded by the Company. 

§ Considered the terms of the contracts 

to determine the transaction price 

including any variable consideration to 

verify the transaction price used to 

compute revenue and to test the basis 

of estimation of the variable 

consideration.  

§    In respect of samples relating to metro 

con t rac t s ,  p rogress  towards  

satisfaction of performance obligation 

used to compute recorded revenue 

was verified with actual cost incurred 

up to that stage with estimation. We 

also tested the access and change 

management controls relating to 

these systems. 

a.
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Recoverability and assessment of Trade 

Receivables, advances, balances with 

government departments

Trade receivables, advances, balances with 

government departments of the company 

comprise mainly receivables in relation to 

the manufacturing and sale of (i) Earth 

Moving equipment (ii) Rail & Metro Products 

(iii) Defence products (iv)  spares and 

services (v) Advance to Vendors and (vi) 

Duties and taxes etc. 

These balances are recognised at their 

anticipated realisable value, which is the 

original invoiced amount/payments less 

provision (estimated for) for non-realisable 

value. 

Valuation of trade receivables, advances, 

and balances with government departments 

is a key audit matter in the audit due to the 

size of its holding and the high level of 

management  judgement  used  in  

determining the impairment provision.

§ Sample of revenues disaggregated by 

type and service offerings was tested 

with the performance obligations 

specified in the underlying contracts. 

§ Performed analytical procedures for 

reasonableness of revenues disclosed 

by type and service offerings.  

    We reviewed the collation of 

information from the budgeted 

information of the management used 

to prepare the disclosure relating to 

the periods over which the remaining 

performance obligations will be 

satisfied subsequent to the balance 

sheet date.

Principal Audit Procedures

We have performed the following procedures in 

relation to the recoverability of trade receivables:

o Tested the accuracy of aging of trade 

receivables, advances, balances with 

government departments at year end 

on a sample basis. 

o Obtained a list of outstanding 

receivables and identified any debtors 

wherever there is delay in payment 

over the terms agreed. 

o Assessed the recoverability of the 

unsettled receivables on a sample basis 

t h r o u g h  o u r  e v a l u a t i o n  o f  

management's assessment with 

reference to the credit profile of the 

customers, historical payment pattern 

o f  c u s t o m e r s  a n d  l a t e s t  

correspondence with customers and to 

consider if any additional provision 

should be made; and 

o Tested subsequent settlement of trade 

receivables after the balance sheet 

date on a sample basis, if any.

We found the key judgements and assumptions 

used by management in the recoverability 

assessment of trade receivables to be supportable 

based on the available evidence.

b.
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Disputes and potential litigations:

Refer to Note 39.D.I.a.i. in the consolidated 

financial statements 

The Company is involved in legal 

proceedings on disputed tax demands. The 

company's management has assessed that 

the probability of success of the demand is 

Remote and accordingly has not provided for 

the disputed demands.

Management judgement is involved in 

assessing the accounting for demands, and 

in particular in considering the probability of 

a demand being successful and we have 

accordingly designated this as a focus area of 

the audit. The risk related to the claims is 

mainly associated with the completeness of 

the disclosure, and the completeness of the 

provisions in the financial statements.

We have drawn attention in Emphasis of Matters on 

trade receivables, advances and balances with 

government departments which, in our judgement, 

are fundamental to the users' understanding of the 

financial statements. 

Principal Audit Procedures

In response to the risk of completeness of the 

disclosures and the completeness of the provisions 

in the financial statements, we discussed the cases 

with management, and reviewed correspondence 

and other documents exchanged between 

company and advocates/legal practitioners parties 

involved in the disputes. We verified the demands 

with extracts of concerned web-portals produced 

on, sample basis.

We tested provisions recorded in the accounting 

records and reviewed the disclosures for 

completeness based on our procedures detailed 

above.

c.
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realistic alternative but to do so.  

12. The respective Board of Directors of the 

companies included in the Group and of its 

associates and jointly controlled entities are 

responsible for overseeing the financial 

reporting process of the Group and its 

associates and jointly controlled entities. 

13. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the consolidated 

financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 

includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance 

is a high level assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 

and are considered material if, individually or 

in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we 

exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 

also:

l Identify and assess the risks of material 

misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 

not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control.

l Obtain an understanding of internal control 

relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 

the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on 

whether the company and its subsidiary 

compan ies  wh i ch  a re  compan ies  

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Responsibilities of Management and Those 

Charged  wi th  Governance  for  the  

Consolidated Financial Statements:

10. The Holding Company's Board of Directors is 

responsible for preparation and presentation 

of these consolidated financial statements in 

terms of the requirements of the Companies 

Act 2013 that give a true and fair view of the 

consolidated financial position, consolidated 

financial performance, consolidated changes 

in equity and consolidated cash flows of the 

Group including its Associates and Jointly 

Controlled entities in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, including the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act. The 

respective Board of Directors of the 

companies included in the Group and of its 

associates and jointly controlled entities are 

responsible for maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding the 

assets of the Group and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other irregularities; 

selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

and des ign,  imp lementat ion  and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the financial 

statements that give a true and fair view and 

are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error which have 

been used for the purpose of preparation of 

the consolidated financial statements by the 

directors of the Holding Company, as 

aforesaid..

11. In preparing the consolidated financial 

statements the respective Board of Directors 

of the companies included in the Group and 

of its associates and jointly controlled 

entities are responsible for assessing the 

ability of the Group and of its associates and 

jointly controlled entities to continue as a 

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to liquidate the 

Group or to cease operations, or has no 
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our audit work and in evaluating the results of our 

work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 

misstatements in the consolidated financial 

statements

We communicate with those charged with 

governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify 

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance 

with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. From the matters communicated with 

those charged with governance, we determine 

those matters that were of most significance in the 

audit of the standalone financial statements of the 

current period and are therefore the key audit 

matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's 

report unless law or regulation precludes public 

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because 

the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 

interest benefits of such communication.

14. We d id  no t  aud i t  the  f i nanc i a l  

statements/financial information of the 

subsidiary VIGNYAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED, 

whose financial statements/financial 

information reflect total assets of Rs. 

1,184.41 lakhs as at 31.03.2020 and loss of 

Rs. 466.44 lakhs and net cash outflow 

amounting to Rs.NIL for the then year ended 

on that date as considered in the 

consolidated financial statements. The 

financial statements/financial information 

has been audited by other auditors and our 

opinion, on the consolidated financial 

statements, in so far as it relates to the 

amounts and disclosures included in respect 

of the subsidiary and our report in terms of 

sub-sections (3) and (11) of section 143 of 

the Act is based solely on the report of the 

other auditors. 

15. We did not audit the financial statements of 

Other Matters:

incorporated in India has adequate internal 

financial controls with reference to 

consolidated financial statements in place 

and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls.

l Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting est imates and related 

disclosures made by management.

l Conclude on the appropriateness of 

management's use of the going concern 

basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the Company's ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor's report to the 

related disclosures in the financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor's 

report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Company to cease to continue 

as a going concern.

l Evaluate the overall presentation, structure 

and content of the consolidated financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the consolidated financial 

statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation.

l Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 

regarding the financial information of the 

entities within the Group to express an 

opinion on the consolidated financial 

statements. We are responsible for the 

direction, supervision and performance of 

the audit of the financial statements of such 

entities included in the consolidated financial 

statements of which we are the independent 

auditors

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 

consolidated financial statements that, individually 

or in aggregate, makes it probable that the 

economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 

user of the consolidated financial statements may 

be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality 

and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
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were necessary for the purposes of our 

audit of the aforesaid consolidated 

financial statements

b) In our opinion proper books of account 

as required by law relating to 

preparat ion  o f  the  a foresa id  

consolidated financial statements have 

been kept so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books and the 

reports or the other auditors. 

c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, the 

consolidated Statement of Profit and 

Loss, the consolidated Statement of 

Changes in Equity and the consolidated 

Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the 

relevant books of account maintained 

for the purpose of preparation of the 

consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, except for the effect of 

the matters described in the Basis for 

Qualified Opinion section of our report, 

the aforesaid consolidated financial 

statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 

of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) Being a Government Company 

provisions of section 164(2) of the Act 

relating to disqualification of directors 

are not applicable. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of the Group and the 

operating effectiveness of such 

controls, refer to our separate Report in 

Annexure A.

g) With respect to other matters to be 

included in the Auditor's Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014, in our opinion and to the best of 

our information and according to the 

explanations given to us;

i. The consol idated f inancial 

statements disclose the impact of 

pending litigations on the 

consolidated financial position of 

the Group, its associates and 

the subsidiary MAMC Industries Limited, 

whose financial statements reflect total 

assets of Rs. 458.13 lakhs as at 31.03.2020 

and loss of Rs. 9.59 lakhs and net cash 

outflow amounting to Rs. 0.06 lakhs for the 

then year ended on that date as considered 

in the consolidated financial statements. The 

financial statements/financial information 

have been audited by other auditors whose 

report has been furnished to us by the 

Management and our opinion, on the 

consolidated financial statements, in so far 

as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 

included in respect of the subsidiary and our 

report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) 

of section 143 of the Act is based solely on 

the report of the other auditors. 

16. We did not audit the financial statements of 

the subsidiary BEML BRAZIL INDUSTRIAL 

LTDA, whose financial statements reflect 

total assets of Rs. NIL as at 31.03.2020 and 

loss of Rs. NIL lakhs and net cash out flow 

amounting to Rs. NIL for the then year 

ended. The financial statements have been 

audited by other auditor under local laws of 

Brazil.  The financial information as on the 

date of consolidation has been furnished by 

the Management, by adopting average 

exchange rate of conversion for the year in 

respect of Statement of profit and loss and 

our opinion on the consolidated financial 

statements, in so far as it relates to the 

amounts and disclosure of the subsidiary and 

our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and 

(11) of section 143 of the Act is based solely 

on the report of the other auditors.   

17. Our opinion on the consolidated financial 

statements, and our report on Other Legal 

and Regulatory Requirements below, is not 

modified in respect of the above matters with 

respect to our reliance on the work done and 

the reports of the other auditors and the 

financial statements/financial information 

certified by the Management. 

18. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we 

report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the 

information and explanations which to 

the best of our knowledge and belief 

Report on other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements
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iii. There were no amounts which 

were required to be transferred to 

the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Holding 

Company,  i t s  s ub s i d i a r y  

companies and jointly controlled 

companies incorporated in India.

jointly controlled entities.  Refer 

N o t e  3 9 ( D ) ( I ) ( a ) ( i i )  o f  

consolidated financial statements. 

ii. The Group its associates and 

jointly controlled entities did not 

have any derivative contracts but 

h a v e  p r o v i d e d  m a t e r i a l  

foreseeable losses of  Rs. 120.18 

Lakhs ( PY Rs. 1123.57 Lakhs) for 

onerous contracts (Refer Note 

37).

For V. KRISHNAN & CO., 

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No: 001541S

J. SIVAKUMAR-Partner

Membership No. 217774

UDIN: 20217774AAAABU3723Place: Bengaluru (camp)

Date:  18.8.2020
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of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 

ethical requirements, plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

adequate internal financial controls over financial 

reporting were established and maintained and if 

such controls operated effectively in all material 

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 

audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting 

and their operating effectiveness.  Our audit of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting 

included obtaining an understanding of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 

and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the 

assessed risk.  The procedures selected depend on 

the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence, we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Group's internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting.

A Group's internal financial control over financial 

reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

Group's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures 

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 

in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

Group; (2)provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of  financial statements in accordance 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal financial controls over 

financial reporting of M/s. BEML LIMITED 

(hereinafter referred as “the Holding Company”) 

and its subsidiaries (holding company and its 

subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) 

and its jointly controlled entity as of March 31, 2020 

in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated 

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 

on that date.

The Group's management is responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Group 

considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

(the Guidance Note) issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India [ICAI]. These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation 

and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to Group's policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, and the 

timely preparation of reliable financial information, 

as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 

Group's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit and reports received 

from the auditors of two subsidiary companies. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, 

issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 

controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 

Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute 

Management's Responsibility for Internal 

Financial Controls

Auditors' Responsibility

ANNEXURE-A

Referred in clause (f), paragraph 15 of the INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT of even date on the 
consolidated financial statements of M/s. BEML LIMITED for the year ended 31.03.2020

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements  
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
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conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 

the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Group (except BEML MIDWEST 

JOINT VENTURE ENTITY which has not maintained 

books of accounts and BMEL BRAZIL INDUSTRIAL 

LTDA, which has been registered outside India) has, 

in all material respects, an adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting and such 

internal financial controls over financial reporting 

were operating effectively as at 31st March 2020, 

based on “the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Group 

considering the essential components of internal 

control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India”.

Opinion:

with generally accepted accounting principles, and 

that receipts and expenditures of the Group are 

being made only in accordance with authorisations 

of management and directors of the Group; and (3) 

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 

or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 

or disposition of the Group's assets that could have 

a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting, including 

the possibility of collusion or improper management 

override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected.  Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

financial control over financial reporting may 

become inadequate because of changes in 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 

Controls over Financial Reporting

For V. KRISHNAN & CO., 

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No: 001541S

J.SIVAKUMAR-Partner

Membership No. 217774

UDIN: 20217774AAAABU3723

Place: Bengaluru (camp)

Date:  18.8.2020
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As explained in Note 07, the financial 

statements of BEML Midwest Limited, a joint 

venture company, has not been consolidated in 

the absence of its financial statements. As per 

the accounting principles, the financial 

statements of this joint venture should have 

been consolidated using proportionate 

consolidation method. The effects on the 

consolidated financial statements, of the failure 

to consolidate this joint venture company, net of 

provision for diminution already made in the 

value of the investment, has not been 

determined.

4

ADDENDUM TO THE BOARD'S REPORT
Company's reply to the observation of Statutory Auditor's in their Consolidated Audit Report

Auditor's Observation Company's ReplyPara 
No.

There was complete cessation of activities in 

M/s. BEML Midwest Ltd., the JV company since 

September 2008 and the matters relating to the 

JV company are subjudice. In view of the above, 

the JV company has not prepared its accounts 

and thus the same could not be consolidated. 

Provision for diminution in the value of 

investment in the JV company is already made. 

The impact, if any, on account of non-

consolidation is not expected to be material.

MoD (Ministry of Defense) vide their letter dated 

3rd September 2019 has directed BEML to 

initiate and complete the disinvestment process 

by 4 months and in case no strategic buyer is 

found. BEML shall initiate the process of closure.  

BEML Board in turninitiated action for 

disinvesting VIL.  PIM/EOI was uploaded in 

BEML/MOD, DDP/DIPAM websites, including in 

the website of TA (Resurgent India) on 

04.09.2019 and also published in newspapers 

on 05.09.2019 for inviting suitable buyers for 

the same.  However, as per information 

provided to us, no bid was received and as per 

alternative mechanism there exists no option 

for the company but to initiate closure.  Also, 

the company has once again approached MoD 

for its approval for closure.  The directions from 

MoD was awaited on the date of signing the 

original report. 

5 VIL's Financial Statements has been made as a 

Going Concern as of 31.03.2020 since 

operations were on for the full Financial Year.

MoD vide letter dated 07.07.2020 has intimated 

that the competent Authority has accorded “in-

principle” approval for closure of VIL and the 

process is underway.
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To
Shri Deepak Kumar Hota,
Chairman and Managing Director,
M/s. BEML Limited,
BEML Soudha, S.R.Nagar,
Bangalore-560 027.

Sir,

Sub: Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
    Sect ion 143(6)(b)  of  the  Companies  Act ,  2013 on the
         Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of M/s BEML Limited,
         Bengaluru for the year ended  31 March 2020.

       I forward “Nil Comments” Certificates of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 

143(6)(b) read with section 129(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Standalone and ConsolidatedFinancial 

Statements of M/s. BEML Limited, Bengaluru for the year ended 31 March 2020.

19 August 2020
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